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and Members of the Council 

City of Zachary, Louisiana 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
discretely presented component unit (the City Court of Zachary). each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
infoirnatioh of the City of Zachary. Louisiana as of and for the year ended June 30,2015, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City!s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the prepar^ion and fair presenfatioh of these.financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, this includes the design, implementation, and 
nhaintenarice of Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involved performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about theomounts and disclosures.in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend oni the auditor's judgment, including the. assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error. In makjng those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also , includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by managerhent, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we obtained sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 
Ih our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cityof Zachary, Louisiana, as of June 30,2015, and 
the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued) 
ptherMatters 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted ,In the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis on pages 3 through 11, budgetary comparison information on pages 78 through 80, the Schedule of 
Funding Progress for Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan on page 81, the Schedule of City of Zachary, Louisiana's 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability on page 82. and the Schedule of City of Zachary, Louisiana's Pension 
Coritributions on page 83 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such ihformation. although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it 
to be an essential .partof finaricial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
econbrtiic, or historica) context We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Americai which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial stateiinerits. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Pity of Zachary, Louisiana's basic financialstetements. The statistical section and other supplemental information on 
pages 85 through 101 and pages 103 through 105 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 102 is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management arid Budget Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, arid Noh-Prdfit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial 
statements. 

the other supplemehtal infoimation and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of 
itianagement and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statementsand certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underiying at^unting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, I n our opinion , the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated In all materia! respects In relation to the financial 
statemente as a whole. 

The statistical section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
\n accordar\cem\h Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 10,2015, on bur 
consideration of the City pf Zachaiys.iritemal control over financial reporting and on our test of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws; regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 

testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral partof an audit performed in accordance with GovemmenfAud/ffog Sfandarefs in considering City of Zachary, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

&S^sociates, LLC 
Zachary, Louisiana 
December 10, 2015 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JTJNE30.2015 

This'section of the City of ̂ chwy,.Louisiana's (the City) annual financial report presents our discussion and 
analysis of the City's financial performance during the twelve months ended June 30, 2015. Plwse read it in 
conjunction with the City's financial statements which follow this section. 

FINANCIAL fflGHLIGHTS 

• The City's combined net position as of June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014 were $32,596,283 and 
$42,600,714 respectively. Net position of our governmental activities were $16,397,772 and 
$25,359,626 respectively while those of our business-type activities were $16,198,511 and 
$17,241,088 respectively. 

• The general fund ended the current fiscal year with a $9,295,157 fiind balance of which $77,293 is 
non-spendable and zero dollars applies to inter-fund payables. In the prior fiscal y^, the general 
fund ended the year with an $8,187,336 fund, balance of which ^4,884 is non-spendable and zero 
dollars v/as,reserved for the payment of interfund payables. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of four parts - management's discussion and. analysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements^ required supplementary information, and an optional section that presents supplemental 
statements and schedules. The basic financial statements include two kinds of staternents that present 
different views of the City: 

• The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide long-term and short-
term information about the City's overall financial status and economic condition. 

• The remaining ^tements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City 
government, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 

• The governmental funds statements tell how general government services like public safety 
were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 

• Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information aboiit the 
activities the government operates like businesses, such as vrater and sewer systems. 

The financial statements also iticlude notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements 
and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary 
information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. Figure A-1 shows 
how the required parts of this aimual report are arranged and relate to one another. In addition to these 
required elerhehts, we have included a section with more detailed schedules providing further insight into the 
revenue and expenses of the City. 

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the 
City's government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this oveiview 
section of management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements. 
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aXY OF ZACHARY. LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30,2015 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

Figure A-1 
Major Features of City's Government and Fund Financial Statements 

Fund Statements 
Government-wide 

Statements Government Funds Proprietary Funds 

Scope Entire City 
government 

The activities of the City that 
are not proprietary or 
fiduciaiy, such as police, firej 
ahdstreets 

Activities the City 
operates similar to 
private businesses: 
the .water, sewer Md 
gM systems 

Required. 
financial 
statements 

Statement of net 
position 
Statement of 
activities 

Balance Sheet 
Statement of revenues, 

expenditures, and 
changes in fund 
balances 

Statement of 
net position 
Statement of 
revenues, 
expense, and 
changes |n net 
position 
Statement of 
ca^ flows 

Accounting 
basis and 
measurement 
focus 

Accrual accounting 
andeconomic 
resources focus 

Modified accrual accounting 
and current financial 
resources focus 

Accrual accounting 
andeconomic 
resources focus 

Type of 
asset/liability 
information 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and capital, 
and short-term and 
long-term. 

Only assets expected to be 
used up and liabilities that 
come due during the year or 
soon thereafter; no capital 
assets included 

All assets and 
liabiiities, both 
financial and capital, 
and short-term and 
long-term 

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
infonnation 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
year, regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid 

Revenues for which cash is . 
received during or soon after 
the end of the year; 
expenditures when good or 
services have been received 
and payment is due during 
the year or soon thereafter 

All revenue and 
expenses during 
year, regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid 



CITY OF ZACHARY. LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30,2015 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

Government'-iyide Statements 
The government-wide statements report information abpiif the City ^ a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the 
government's assets and liabilities. All of the cuireht year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the 
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid, 

Tte two government-wide statements report the City's net position and how they have changed. Net position 
- the difference between the City's assets and liabilities - is one way to measure the City's financial health, or 
position. 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position is an indicator of whether its financial 
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

• To assess the overall health of the City, one needs to consider additional non-financial factors such as 
changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's roads and utilities 
infrastructure. 

The government-wide financi^ statements of the City are divided into two categories: 
• Government activities r- Most of the City's basic services are included here, such as the police, fire, 

public works, recreation departnient, and general administration. Sales taxes, property taxes, 
intergovemmental.activities and fianchise fees finance most of these activities. Also included in this 
section is the debt service fund. 

• Businessrtype activities - The City charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain 
services it provides, The City's water, gas and sewer systems are included here. 

Fund Financial Statements 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds - not 
the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of 
funding and spending for particular purposes. 

The City h^ two kinds of funds: 
• Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds, which 

focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out 
and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequentiy, the government 
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more 
or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near fbture to finance the City's programs. 
Because this infoimation does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the govemrnent-wide 
statements, we provide additional information on the subsequent page which explains the relationship 
(or difference) between them. 

• Proprietary funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in 
proprietary fiind. Proprietary funds, like the govemment-wide statements, provide both long and 
short-term financial information. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) 
are the same as its business-type activities, but provide more detail and additional information such as 
cash flows. 



CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30.2015 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Condensed Statement of Net Position: 

Table. 
City's Net 

A-1 
'osition 

Government 
Activities 

Govemihent 
Activities 

2015 2014 
Current and other assets 13,307.625 20,618338 
Capital assets 32,230,908 22,210,575 

Total assets 45,538,533 42,829313 
Deferred Outflow: Pension Rdated 1,855,193 
Current liabilities 2,552,145 2.417,778 
Long term liabilities 26.655,009 15,051,709 

Total UabUities 29,207,154 17,469;487 
Deferred Inflow: Pension Related 1,788,800 
Net assets: 
Net invested in capital assets 22,700,908 12,210,575 
Restricted 2,744,364 826,115 
Unrestricted (9,047,500) 12,322,936 

Total net position 16397,772 25359,626 

Table. 
City's Net 1 

4-1 
['osition 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

2015 2014 
Current and other assets 5,239,314 6,034,356 
Capital assets 26;916,696 24336,677 

Total assets 32,156,010 30371,033 
Deferred Outflow; Pension Related 255,447 
Current liabilities 2,867.000 2,95,1,200 
Long term liabilities 13,013,057 10378,746 

Total liabilities 15380,057 13,129,945 
Deferred Inflow; Pension Related 332,889 
Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related 
debt 

26,172,496 14,051,813 

Restricted funds 1,505,724 1,259,281 
Unrestricted (deficit) (11,479,709) 1,929,994 

Total net position 16,198,511 17341,088 



OTY OFZACHARY. LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30,2015 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CTTY AS A WHOLE (continued) 

Condensed Statements of Activities 

The City's total change in net position was $1,227,999; $108,802 from governmental activities and 
$1,119,197 from busing-type activities. The chart below only reflects the changes from the financial 
statement whereas the R^pnciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances reflects the total change in net position. The City of Zachaiy continues to experience an overall 
positive change in net position. The City continues to have growth in its- revenue stream (approximately 
7.9% above the previous year) and the reoccurring expenditures remain fairly stable with on a 3.5% increase. 
What impacted tiie City this year in expenditures was a $2,650,000 litigation liability that will be retired over 
the next five (5) ye^s. The City continues to work diligently to provide necessary services for the Public and 
at the same time provide for the needs of the staff. Changes in Federal GASB laws, less State and Federal 
grants and growth that requires new capital expenditures will continue to present a challenge for not just the 
City but for all municipalities in the ftture. Table A^2 on the next two pages shows the composition of 
revenues and summarizes the expenses by function or service area; 

Table A-2 
Changes in City's Net Position 

Goveniment Activities Government Activities 
2015 2014 

Revenues 
Chargesfor services 1,294,040 1,318,827 
Fines 224,344 187,681 
Grants and contributions 1,904,668 1,147,745 
General revenues: 

Taxes 1^445,355 9,588,798 
Commissions 1,404,853 1,402,720 
Licenses and permits 563,524 517,114 
Miscellaneous/Interest Income 542,176 1,060,016 

Total Revenues 16378J>60 15,222,901 
Expense 
General Government 7,309,837 4.859.311 

, Public Safety 6,456,149 6,162,766 
Streets 1,018,873 879,094 
Sanitation 1,105,874 1,032,332 
Debt Service 439,425 290.515 

Total Expenses 16,330,158 13,224.018 
Transfers/Capital Contributions 60,000 70,000 
Increase in net position 108,802 2,068,888 



CITY OE ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30,2015 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (continued) 

Condensed Statements of Activities (continued) 

Table A-2 
Cb^ges in City's Nrt Position 

Business-Type Activities Business-Type Activities 
2015 2014 

Revenues 
Charges for services 6,898,810 8.020,139 
Genera! revenues: 

Miscellaneous/Interest Income 133,384 225,215 
Total Revenues 7,032,194 8,245,354 

Expense 
Water 1.099.131 989,170 

1,708.428 1.997.097 
Sewer 756,732 867,260 
Gen7Admin./Warehouse/Mech. 985,778 942,070 
Depreciation 1,346,371 1,145,152 

Total Expenses 5^896,440 5,940,749 
Non-operating Reveniies 
CBxpenses) 

(16,557) (18;789) 

Increase (Decrease) in net 
position 1,119,197 2,285,816 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CTTY^S FUNDS 

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $12,360,480 
consisting of $9,295,1:57 in the general fund, $320,959 in the special revenue fund and $2,744,364 in the debt 
service fund, fhe primary difference occurred in the Special Revenue Fund as cash was expended in the 
completion of the major road projects. Of the above balances $77,293 is r^tricted in the general fund, 
$320,959 in the sp^ial revenue fund and $2,744,364 in the debt service fund. The special revenue ftind and 
debt service fund restrictions are related to the bonds issued for street projects. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the fisMl year, the Council may approve amendments to the City's budget; These budget 
amendments result from items involving accounting changes, increased costs and revenues to the Chy. The 
City made budgetary ^endments for this fiscal year. The changes to the City's budget affected both 
revenues and expenses. Sales tax revenues increased by 5.9% over the previous year while ad valorem taxes 
increased by 3.08%. There were both increases and decreases in various income and expense departments but 
the overall level of budget income to expense had a positive effect on fund balance. The Administration 
continues to budget conservatively as a result of the uncertainty in the overall economy. As noted previously, 
costs beyond the City's control continue to increase, i.e. retirement and insurance. 



OTY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE30.20I5 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

At the end of June 2015, the City had invested $59,147,604 in a broad range of capital assets, including police 
and fire equipment, streets, buildings, vehicles, and water and. sewer systems. See Table Ar3. This amount 
represents a net increase (including additions and deductions) of $12,600,352 over the previous year. This 
continues to be as the result of die sewer rehab work and two main road projects that were undertaken in the 
current budg^ year. The main road project still under construction is the widening of Highway 64 from 
Bamett Road to Highway 964. This is a $8 million project that over the next 15 years which will be refunded 
to the City by East Baton Rouge as part of the Green Li^t Road Program. This project should be completed 
in the spring of 2016 with the City receiving $500,000 each year for 15 years. The City continues to have 
assets that are cost efticient and can provide for the public's best interest. 

Table A-;3 
City's Capital Assets 

Government Activities Business Activities 
2015 2014 2015 2014 

Land 2,506,635 2,354,222 50,426 47,426 
Construction-in-progress 4,562,106 4,749,614 1,086,752 2,563,955 
Building/Infiastructure 5,701,083 3,778,560 41,741,053 36,354.301 
Road Infrastructure 18,726,922 10,084,688 - . 
Equipment 9,643,378 9,272,572 2,144,076 2.130,236 
Less: Accumulated 
Depreciation (8,909,217) (8,029,081) (18.105,611) (16,759^41) 

Total 32,230,908 22,210,575 26316,696 24336,677 

The City should finalize the sewer rehab prog|rflm in the upcoming year. This program has allowed the City 
to upgrade, repair and add new many linear feet of sewer. This will allow the Utility Department to stay on 
track with regular maintenance arid, repair without major interruptions of service for the Public as well as 
greater functionality during major rain events. The City continues construction on.Mourit Ple^t Boulevard 
which will total over eight (8) million when coriipleted in the spring of 2016. A CEA has been signed with 
City Parish which will allow the City to recoup 7.5 million of this expense. The total sewer rehab will total 
close to 15 million and should be completed in 2016. Various fire and police equipment and vehicles have 
also been purchased to continue to provide those services for the community. 

EGONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

As a,result of GASB 68, the City had to record liability entries to this year's financials that greatly;affected 
the net position of the City. A total of $8,893^911 was recorded for the Governmental Activities and 
$1,915,882 was recorded for the Business-type Activities. This liability relates to the pension liability of the 
City. Another $2,650,000 litigation liability was recorded as the negative result of a legal settlement. Even 
with tile recording of these liabilities the City was able to maintain a positive net position. Administration 
and Council will continue to work diligeritly to continue to-maintain this positive position and to ensure the 
ftiture for the City. 

10 



aTY OF ZACHARY. LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30.2015 

The Cify's primaiy source of revenue, saJes continues to increase. Sales Tax revenues improved by 5.9% 
over the previous ibudget year with Ad Valorem taxes increasing by 3.08%. The Gily does expect tax 
revenues to have a smaller increase over the next two years as the City's growth in population slows. This is 
not expected to be a long term trend and growth is expected to begin to increase in the 3% to S% range as the 
Americana development begins to solidify. Over die next two years Ainericana expects to add major retail 
and family development with one project currently permitted and another to be permitted in the first quarter of 
2016. Both projects should be completed in 2017. Home construction and sales have beguii to increase in the 
development ias well. All this combined should result in the projections of sales tax revenue to again increase 
in the future. 

Two of the three large road projects have been completed with the third to be completed in spring of 2016. 
The large sewer rehab work should be completed early next year as well. The Administration anticipates in 
next budget year that there will not be the need for major projects, allowing both the City and the staff to 
handle regul^ maintenance and repair work without the need for contractual services. The Administration 
will continue to analyze services and infrastructure in order to maintain both, in the highest working order. 

As before, expenditures for insurance and retirement continue to rise biit the City has implemented plans to 
keep these costs within reason and still provide for employees. The Administration in conjunction with the 
Council continues to handle the delicate balance of revenues vs. expenditure and services to the public with 
availability to provide in an effort to insure that the positive net position of the City continues. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report Js designed to provide our citi^ns, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with an overview 
of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives. Questions or 
requests "for additional information should be dir^ted to the Director of Administration, P.O. Box 310, 
^chary,LA 70791,(225)654-0287. 

11 
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CITY OF ZACHARY. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2015 

EXHIBIT A 

Primary Government 
Govemm'ehtal BusineK-typfB Component 

Activities Activities Total Unit 
ASSETS 
Cash and cash equlvaiants $ 10,479,828 $ 965,525 $ 11,445,353 $ 177,835 
Account receivable 1,422,252 1,145,736 2,567,988 -
Other receivables 1.328.252 16,851 1,345,103 -
prepaid expenses 77.293 67,811 145,104 -
Inventory - 136,664 136,664 -
Restricted Assets; 

Cus.tOfin^ deposits: 
Cash and cash equivalents - 245,003 245,003 -
Investments - 500,000 500,000 -

Utility revenue bond: 
Cash arid cash equivalents - 2,161,724 2,161,724 r 

Capital assets: -
Land and construction In progress 7,068.741 1,137,178 8,205,919 -
Depreclabie capitai assete, net 

of depreciation 25,'162,167 .25,779,618 50,941,685 100,814 

TOTAL ASSETS 45.538.533 32,156.010 77,694,543 278,649 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension related 1.855.193 255,447 2;110,640 89.532 

LIABIUTIES 
Accounts payable 1.186,941 280,430 1:467,371 
Other payables 275,756 597,288 873,044 -
(riter^nd tulances (515,552) 515,552 - -
Customermeter deposits - 729;530 729.530 -
Long-term debt: 

Other Post employment benefits 6,406,350 . 6,406,350 
Diie witlvn one year 1,^5,000 744,200 2,349,200 45.612 
Due beyond one year 11,354,748 11,097,175 22,451,923 -
Net pension liability 8;89l911 1,915,882 10,609,793 241,299 

TOTAL UABIUTIES 29,207,154 15.880,057 45.087,211 286.911 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Pension related 1,788,800 332,889 2,121,689 32,410 

NET POSITION 
Net invested In capital assets 22,700,908 26.172.496 48.873,404 55,201 
Restricted 2,744,364 1,505,724 4,250,088 -
Urvestricted (9;a47,500) (11,479i709) (20,527,209) (6.341) 

TOTAL MET POSmON $ 16.397,772 $ 16,198,511 $ 32,596,283 $ 48,860 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OP ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF ACTWrnES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 

EXHIBIT B 

Proaram Revenues 
Charges Operating 

Net (^pense) Revenue and 
Changes In Net Position 

Primary Government 

Expenses 
for 

Services 
Grants and 

Contributions 
Governmental 

Activities 
Business-type 

Aotlvitiee Total 
Component 

Unit 
FUNC-nONSfPROGRAMS 
Primary Govemrhent; 
Governmental Aetlyities: 
General Government 
Streets 
Public Safety 
Sanitation ' 
Debt Service 

S 7.309,837 S 
1.018.873 
6.456.149 
1.105.874 

439,425 

104:061 

62,163 
1,097.816 

S 1,398,868 S 
83,102 

422.698 

(5,008,908) 
(935,771) 

(5,941,288) 
(8,058) 

(439,425) 

S - $ (5:806,908) .$ 
(935.77.1) 

{5,941,288) 
(8,058) 

(439,425) 

-

Total Governmental Activities 16.330.166 1,294.040 1.904.668 113,131,460) (13.131.460) 

Business-type Activities: 
Enterpise-Utilities 5,915,705 6,793.501 195,833 1,073,629 1.073.629 
Total Buslnes-type Activities 5,916,705 8.793,801 196,633 . 1.073,629 1.073,629 . 

Totel Primary Government 22,246.863 8,087,641 2,100,601 _(13i131.450) 1,073,629 (12,067,8211 

Component Units 
Judicial services 702,662 836,147 132,666 
Total Cbmponerit Units 702,682 836,147 - - . 132466 

General Revenues: 
Taxes 
Finos 
Commls^ons 
License and permits 
interest incorhe 
Others 
Transfers 

10.445,355 
224.344 

1.41)4,853 
563,624 

28 
542,146 
60,000 

42,860 

2,708 

10,488,215 
224,344 

1.404,853 
563,524 

2,736 
1542,1^ 

60,000 (60.000) 
Total general revenues and transfers 13,240,262 45,588 13,286,820 (60.000) 

Change In net position 108,802 1.119,197 1^27,999 72,665 

NET POSITION, Beginning 
Restatement of Bieglnnlng Net Position 

2&;359,626 
(9.070.668) 

17,241,088. 
(2,f81.774) 

42.600,714 
111,232,430) 

174,486 
(198,190) 

NET POSITION- Beglnnlngt^estated) 16.288.970 15,079,314 31,368,284 (23.706) 

NET POSITION, Ending $ 16.397,772 S 16,198,611 $ 32,596.283 $ 48,360 

The accompanying notes ere en Integral part of this staterrtenl. 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE:30,2015 

EXHIBIT C 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Sales tax receivabte 
Other receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Accrued interest receivable 
Due from oj^er funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

UABIUTIES AND FUND BALANCES 
LiablHties: 
Accounts payable 
Other payables 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

General 
Fund 

Sales 
Tax Fund 

$ 6,665,032 $ 1,109,770 
1.178.030 4,884 
1,328.252 

77,293 

515,552 

Debt Service 
Fund 

S 2,505,026 
239.338 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 10.479,828 
1,422,252 
1.328,252 

77,293 

515,552 

$ 9,984,159 $ 1,114,654 $ 2.744.364 $ 13,823,177 

$ 534,244 
134.758 

669,002 

$ 652,697 
140;998 

793,695 

1,186,941 
275,756 

1^62,697 

Fund balance: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted; 
Committed 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

77,293 

9.217,864 

9,295,157 

320,959 

320,959 

2744.364 

2,744.364 

$ 9,964,159 $ 1,114,654 $ 2,744,364 

77,293 
2,744.364 

320,959 
9.217,eW 

12,360,480 

Reconciliatibn of the Government Fund Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position: 

Capital assets used in.govemmental activiUes are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are hot reported in the funds: 

Cost of capital assets at June 30, i2015 41.140,124 
Less: accumulated depreciation at June 30,2015 (8;909,217) 

Deterred outflow 

32,230,907 

1,856,193 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due 
' and payable in the cunent period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities: 

Litigation payable $ (2:650.000) 
Bond Payable (9.530,000) 
OPEB Liability (€i.406.350) 
Pension liability (8,893,911) 
Compensated absences (779.747) 

Deferred inflow 
Net position of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this statement. 

(28,260,008) 

(1,788.800) 
16,397,772 
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EXHIBIT D 
CITY 0F2ACHARY. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015 
Debt Total 

General Special Service Governmental 
Fund Revenue Fund Funds 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 8,592,996 $ 28,518 $ 1,530.786 $ 10.152.300 
Licenses and permits 563,524 - 563,524 
Intergovernmental 1.904,668 - - 1,904,668 
Charges for services 1,294,040 - - 1,294.040 
Commissions 1.404,853 - - 1,404,853 
Fin^ 224.344 - - 224,344 
Miscellaneous 542.T76 - - 542,176 

TOTAL REVENUES 14,526,601 28,518 1,530,786 16,085,905 

EWENDITURES 
General Government 4,722,448 - - 4,722,448 
Court 382,704 - - 382,704 
Public Safety-

Police 3,899.673 - - 3,899,673 
Fire 2,703.750 - - 2.703.750 

Streets 664,331 8,703,345 - 9,367,676 
Sanitation 1,105,874 - - 1,105,874 
Debt Service: 

Interest - - 439,425 439.425 
Principal - -• 470,000 470,000 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13.478.780 8,703,345 909,425 23,091,550 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 1,047,821 (8,674,827) 621;361 (7.005,645) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers frorri (to) other funds 60.000 (1,296;888) 1,29b,888 60,000 
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES (USES) 60,000 (1,296i888) 1.296,888 60,000 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER 
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 1,107,821 (9,971,715) 1.918;249 (6,945,645) 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), Beginning 8,187,336 10,292,674 826,115 19,306,125 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), Ending 9,295,157 $ 320,959 $ 2,744,364 $ 12,360,480 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL 
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

EXHIBIT E 

Net change in fund balances Governmental Funds (Page 16) 

The change in net position reported for gpvemmental activities^ 
statement of activities is differeht because: 

in the 

$ (6.946,645) 

Revenues thatare no available to pay current obligations are not reported in the 
fund financial statements, but they are presented as revenues in the statement 
of activities. 

Non-employer cpntrit)utions to cost-sharing pension plan 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities^ the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Depreciation expense for the year elided June 30, 2015 

Annual OPES (Other Post Employment Benefit),expense 

Pensiori expense 

Litigation liability 

The liability and expense for compensated absences are not reported in govemmental 
funds. Payments for compensated absences are reported as salaries when they 
occur. Only the payment consumes current financial resources, and it would take 
a catastrophic event fpr this liability to become a current liability. 

The issurance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial 
resources to govemmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of govemmental funds. Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. This amount is the net effect 
of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt: 

293.054 

10,900,470 

(880.136) 

(884,641) 

(49.917) 

(2;65g.000) 

(144,383) 

Principal Payments 470.000 470,000 

Change in net position of govemmental activities (Page 14) 

The accqnipanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
JUNE 30,2015 

EXHIBIT F 

ASSETS 
Current! 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Other receivabtes - DEQ loan 
Other receivables - miscettaneous 
Prepaid expense 
Due from other funds 
Inventory 

Total current assets. 

Restricted assets 
Customer deposits; 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Utility revenue bond: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Total restricted assets 

Capital assets 
Land 
Constructlori In progress 
Structures and'impruvemente 
Machinery and equipment 

Less accumulated depredabon 
Total capital assets 

965.525 
1.145.736 

16.851 
67.811 

136.664 
2.332.587 

245,003 
500.000 

2.906;727 

50,426 
1.086,752 

41.741,054 
2.144.076 

45.022.308 
(18.105.612) 
26.916.696 

TOTAL ASSETS 32,156,010 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS - PENSION 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

UABlUTIES 
Current liabilities (p^able from current assets) 
Payable from current assets: 

Accounts payable 
Other payables 
•lie to other funds 

Current portion of longrterm debt (note) 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Custorners' deposits 
Cuitent portion of long-term debt (bonds) 
Total current ilabllltles 

Long-term liabilities 
Corhpensated absence 
Net pension liability 
Bonds payable 
No^ payable 

Total long-term ijabliitles 

TOTAL LIABIUTIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS - PENSION 

NET POSmON 
Net invested in capital assete 
Restricted net assets-
Unrestricted 
Total Net Position 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, NET POSITION AND DEFERRED INFLOWS 

255,447 

$ 32.411.487 

280,430 
597.288 
5li5.552 
88.200 

729,530 
656.000 

2.867.000 

246,182 
1,915,882 
9.452.181 
1:398.812 

13.013.057 

15:880.057 

332,889 

26,172.496 
1.505.724 

(11,479:709) 
16.198,511 

32.411,457 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT G 
CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services:: 

Watersales 
Gas sales 
Sewer service charges 
Installation charges 

Intergovernmental grant 
Late fees 
Pension expense income 
Miscellaneous service revenues 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Water department 
GaSrdepartment 
Sewer department 
Mechanic 
Warehouse 
General and administrative 
Depreciation 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

OPERATING INCOME 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITIONBeginning 

Restatement of Beginning Net Position 

NET POSITION - Beginning (restated) 

NET POSITION - Ending 

2,576:200 
2,717,566 
1.045.470 
143,325 
195,833 
177,556 
42.860 
133.384 

7,032,194 

1,099,131 
1,708,428 

756,732 
67,673 

160,059 
758,046 

1,346,371 
5,896,440 

1,135,754 

2,708 
(19.265) 
(16,557) 

1,119,197 

17,241,088 

(2,161.774) 

15,079,314 

$ 16,198,511 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT H 
CITY OF ZAGHARY. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received frorn customers 
Cash received from customer deposits 
Cash payments to suppliers 
Cash payments to employees 
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Proceeds from loan 
Prjndpar parents on bonds 
interest payments on note 
Principar payments on note 
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of investments 
Interest income 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN GASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AS USTED ON BALANCE SHEET: 
Unrestricted cash 
Restricted cash 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED 
(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating incbrne (Ibss) 
Adjustments; to reconcile operating income to 

neticash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Pension income 
Pension expense 
Current year pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 
(lncrease);decrease In accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in Other receivables 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
(Increase) decrease jp prepaid expense 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Increase:(decrease) in customer deposits 
Increase (decrease) in compensated abscences 

Total adjustments 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

iSupplementel Data 
Interest paid 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Utility 
Department 

8,202,081 
38,965 

(3,915,781) 
(1,248,852) 
3,076,413 

(3,928,389) 
1,667,029 
(424,000) 
(19,265) 

(2,786,525) 

(400,000) 
2.708 

(397,292) 

(107,404) 

3,479,656 

$ 3.372,252 

$ 965,525 
2,406,727 

$ 3,372^252 

$ 1.135i754 

1,346,371 
(42,861) 
129,857 
(255,447) 
125,066 

1,124,903 
2^,478 
(37,???) 

(516,351) 
38,965 
3.90O 

1,940,659 

$ 3,076,413 

$ 1,964,429 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Zachary, Louisiana operates under a Home Rule Charter that provides for a mayor-
eouncil form of government. Five CounGil members are elected from separate districts at large, and 
they are compensated for their services. As authorized by its charter, the City is responsible for 
providing public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, recreation, public improvements, and 
general government services to its approximately 14,960 inhabitants with its boundaries located in 
East Baton Rouge Parish. 

The accounting and reporting practices of the City of Zachary conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the Uhited States of America as applicable to govemmental units. The City's 
reporting entity applies all relevant Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements. Such accounting and reporting procedures conform to the requirements of 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:517, and to the industry guide, Audits of State and Local 
Govemmental Units, published by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies and practices. 

Financial Reporting Entity 

As the municipal goverrijng authority, for reporting purposes, the City of Zachary, Louisiana is 
considered a separate financial reporting entity. The financial reportitig entity consists of (a) the 
primary govemrnent (municipality), (b) the prgariizations for Which the primary gpvemment is 
financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which nature and significance, of their 
relationship with the prirnary government are such that exclusiph would cause the reporting entity's 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete, 

Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 established criteria for 
determining which component units should be considered part of the City of Zachary, Louisiana for 
financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the 
reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in 
determining financial accountability. These criteria include the following: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and 

a. The ability of the municipality to impose its will on that organization and/or 

b. The potential for the organizations to provide specific financial benefits to or 
irtipose specific financial burdens on the municipality. 

2. Organizations for which the municipality does not appoint a voting majority but are 
fiscally dependent on the municipality. 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financlai statements would be misleading if 
data of the organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the 
relationship. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City of 
Zachary, Louisiana (the primary government) and its cornponent unit. The component unit included in 
the accompanying financial statements is discretely presented. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Component units that are legally separate from the municipality but are finahcially accountable to the 
municipality, or whose relationship with the rriunicipality are such that exclusion would cause the 
municipalit/s financial statements to be misleading or iricomplete are discretely presented, the 
"Component Unit" column of the. combined financial statements includes the financial data of the 
discretely presented component unit. It is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it Is legally 
separate from the municipality. 

The City has one component unit, Zachary City Court, which is defined by GASB Statement No. 14as 
another legally separate organization for whic^ the elected City officials are financially accountable. 

Basis of Presentation 

Govemmentrwide Statements: The statement of net position and; the statement of activities display 
financial information about the City of Zachary as a whole entity; Eliminations have been made to 
minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the 
governmental and business-type activities of the City. Govemmental activities generally are financed 
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, while business-type 
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of net position presents the assets and liabilities of each activity, with the difference 
reported as net position. Net position is further segregated betw^n the amourits invested in capital 
assets, amounts which are restricted, and those which are unrestricted. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's goverrimental activities. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or functions, and therefore, are 

clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include 1) fees, fines arid charges paid by 
the recipients of goods, services, or privileges offered by a program 2) grants and coritnbutions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are 
pot classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds. 
Separate statements for each fund category - govemmental and proprietary - are presented. The 
emphasis of fund financial settlements is on major govemmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in 
a separate column. 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

The daily accounts and operation of the City are organized on the basis of individual funds, each of 
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted forwith a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that compromise Its assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and 
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for 
in individual funds based upon the purpose for whjch they are to be spent and the means by which 
spending activities are controlled. 

The City reports the following Governmental Funds: 

Malor Funds 

General Fund 
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for In another fund. 

Special Revenue Fund 
This fund accounts for the collection and expenditure of a one-half cent sales tax which is 
restricted to street improvement and maintenance. 

Debt Service Fund 
This fund accounts for transactions relating to resources retained and used for the payment of 
principal, interest, and related cost on long term debt. 

The City reports the following Major Enterprise Fund: 

Public Utilities Fund - As a proprietary fund, the public utility fund is used to account for operations, (a) 
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises-where the intent of 
the goveming body isihat the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing the.gdods and 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered through user charges or 
(b) where the goveming body has dedded that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses 
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes. 

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The govemrnent-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources: measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Nonexchange transactions, in which 
the City gives or receives value without directed receiving or giving equal value in exchange, including 
property taxes, grants entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is 
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
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GITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurenrient focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pa^y liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available If they are collected within 
60 days of the end of the curreht fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures 
reliated to compensated absences and claim and judgments, are recorded only when payment Is due. 

Property.;taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscaf period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. Only the portion of specjal assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is 
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when the government receives cash. General capital 
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in govemmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term 
debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing resources. 

Under the terms of grant agreements; the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific 
cost-reimbUrsertient grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program 
expenses are incurred, there js both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the 
program. It is the City's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, 
followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 

Use of Eistimates 

The preparation of financial staternents in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts bf assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from these estimates. 

Operating and Non-operating Revenues and Expenses 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the utility department enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating 
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable 
govemmental or business-type activities columns in the govemmental-wide financial statements. 

J. The 
City's policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. 

Depreciation of. a|l exhaustible assets Is charged as an expense against operations. Depreciation has 
been provided using the straight-line method over the assets' estimated useful lives, which are as 
follows: 

Buildings 35-40 years 
Sewerage systern 25-35 years 
Gas system 35 years 
Water system 12-35 years 
Office equipment 5-10 years; 
Automotive equipment 5-10 years 

Budqet and Budqetaty Accounting 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected, in these financial 
statements: 

1. The Mayor prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Members of theCouncii priortb the 
beginning of each fiscal year. 

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public is notified that the proposed budget is 
available for public inspection. At the same lirtie, a public hearing is called. 

3. The budget is adopted through the passage of an ordinance priorto the commencement of the fiscal 
year for which the budget is being adopted. 

4. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department or involving increases in 
expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated, require the approval of the 
Members of the Council. 

5. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

6. Budgets for the general, debt service, and proprietary funds are adopted on bases consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

Louisiana R.S. 39:1310 requires budgets to be amended when revenue collections plus projected 
revenue collections for the remainder of a year, within a fund, are failing to meet estimated annual 
budgeted revenues by five percent or rnore or expenditures plus projected expenditures for the 
remainder of the year, within a fund, are exceeding estimated budgeted expenditures by five percent or 
more. 
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eiTY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

The level of budgeted control is total appropriations, Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted. 

The original.budgeted beginning fund balance Is noted on the budget to actual statements in the current 
year to more accurately reflect the budgets as they were actually presented to the council. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and investments, which include demand deposit accounts, interest-bearing demand deposit 
accounts, and certificates of deposit, arie stated at cost, which approxiitiates market. Certificates of 
deposit with a maturity date of over three months when purchased are considered investments. 

Under Louisiana Revised Statutes 39:1271 and 33:2955, the City may deposit funds in demand deposit 
accounts, interest-beanng demand deposit accounts, money market accounts, and time certificates of 
deposit with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in 
Louisiana. 

Accounts Receivable and Bad Debt 

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where applicable, are reduced by the estimated 
portion that js expected to be uncollectible. 

Accounts receivable are stated net of uncollectible accounts. Uncollectible amounts due from customers 
for utility services are recognized through an ajlovrance for bad debts account at the time information 
becomes available. Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts and 
revenues net .of uncoliectlbles. Aliowances are reported whep accounts are proven to be uncollectible. 
Accounts.receivable of $1,145,736 is reported net of allowance for uncollectible accounts for the year 
ended June 30,2015. Revenuesof $7,032,194 are reported net of uncollectible amounts forthe year 
ended June 30, 2015. 

Inventory 

Inventory of supplies in the proprietary fund is valued at cost (first-in, first-out). 

Purchases of operating supplies by govemmental fund types are recorded as expenditures when 
purchased: inventories of such supplies are not recorded and are not considered by management to be 
material. 

Prepaid Expenses 

Paynhents made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond, June 30,2015 are recorded as 
prepaid expenses. 
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eiTY OF 2AGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A; SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets included cash and cash equivalents that are legally restricted as to their use. The 
restricted assets are related to the customers' water deposits and bond accounts. 

Short-term Interfund Receivables/Pavables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between the individual funds. These 
interfund receivables/payables are classified on the balance sheet as "Due from Other Funds" or "Due to 
Other Funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the govemmentai activities and business-
type activities are reported in the government-wide financiai statements as "interfund bialances." 

Compensated Absences 

Empipyees earn up to 30 days of vacation ieave each year, depending on their length of service. 
Vacation leaVe can be accumuiated. Upon termination, ali unused vacation is paid to the employee up 
to a maximum of 60 days, 

Employees eam varying amounts of sick leave each year depending on their length of sen/ice and 
employment status; Maximums are set for the accumulation of sick leave with even more restrictive 
lirnits e^abiished for post-retiremerit benefits. 

GASB Stafernent 16 provides that vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar 
characteristics should be accrued as a liability as the benefits are eanied by the employees if both of the 
fojjpwing conditions are met: 

a. The employees' .rights to receive compensation are attributable to services;already rendered. 
b. It Is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid timeeff 

or some other means, such as cash payments at terrfiihation or retirement. 

In cornpliance with GASB Statement 16, the City records a liability for earned vacation and sick leave 
and reflects the liability for this on the government-wide financial statements. 

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types fund statements, the total 
compensated absences liability is recorded as an expense and a long-term obligation and allocated on a 
functional basis. A current liability is recorded for the value of orie year's accrual of ieave. In 
accordance with GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and 
Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements, (issued in March of 2000). no compensated 
absences iiabijity is recorded at.June 30, 2015. in the governmental fund financial statements. 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

Long-Term Obligations 

In government-wide financial statements, debt principal paynrients of both govemmental and business-
type activities are reported as decreases In the balance of the liability on the Statement of Net Position. 
In fund finahciarstatemerits, however, debt principal payments of govemmental funds are recognized as 
expenditures when paid. 

Net Position 

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial StatenlentS'and Managements Discussion and Analysis^ for 
Local and State Governments, required reclassification of net assets into three separate compoherits. 
GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred fiiflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, reviised the terminology by incorporating deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual 
rneasure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. GASB Statement No. 
63 requires the following component of net pbsitibn: 

^ Net invested in capital assets - Consist of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balance of any bonds, mortgageSi 
notes, or other borrowings that are,attributable to the acquisition,.construction, or improvernents 
of those assete. 

- Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on use either by (1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulation of other 
govemments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation: 

- t/nresfncfed nef pos/f/on-All other net position that does not meet the definition of-restriGted" or 
"net invested in capital assets." 

Operatinq Transfers 

Advances between funds which are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as operating transfers. 
In those cases where repayment is expected, the transfers are accounted for through the various due 
from and due to accounts; These are eliminated in the goveriiment-wide statements. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Cjty considers alj highly liquid investments (including 
restricted assets) with original maturities of three months, or less when purchased to be cash 
equivalents. 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

Fund Equity 

City of Zachary, Louisiana elected to Implement GASB 64, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental 
Fund Type Definitions, in fiscal year 2011. In the fund financial statements, fund balance of the 
governmental funds are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or 
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restncted-Amounts that can be spent only for specific purpose because of constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or the laws or regulations at other governments. 

Comm/tfec/-Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the 
City. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions 
approved by the Board of Council.men. 

Ass/igned-Amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed by that are 
intended to be used for specific purposes. 

Unassigned -All other spendable amounts. 

As of June 30.2015 all fund balances are as follows: 

General 
Fund 

Sales Tax 
Fund 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

Nonspendable; 
Prepaid items 

Restricted 

Committed: 
Capital Outlay 

Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 

77.293 

9,217,864 

$ 9.295,157 

320,959 

2,744.364 

320,959 $ 2.744.364 

$ 77.293 

2.744,364 

320,959 

9.217,864 

$ 12,360,480 

Restricted funds are used first as appropriate. Assigned funds are reduced to the extent that 
expenditure authority has been budgeted by the City or the assignment has been changed by the City. 
Decreases in fund balance first reduce Unassigned fund balance; in the event that Unassigned 
becomes zero, then Assigned and Committed fund balances are used in that order. 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

Pension Plans 

The City of Zachary Is a participating employer in multiple cost-sharing, muitipleremployer defined 
benefit pension plans as described in Note K. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of each of the plans, arid additions to/deductions 
for the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 
plan. For this purpose. benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments have been reported at fair 
value within the plan. 

NOTE B: CASH AND GASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

At June 30, 2015, the City of Zachary, Louisiana had the followirig balances: 

Book Bank 
Balances Balances 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total 

$ 13,852,079 $ 14,942,320 
500,000 500,000 

$ 14,352,079 $ 15,442,320 

The deposits are stated at cost, which approxirtiates market. 

Security .on Deposits: 

Under state law, these deposits (or resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit 
insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The^market value of the pledged 
securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal 
agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties: At June SO, 2015, 
the City had the foljbwirig security on deposits as shovvri on the following page: 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE B: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS, continued 

Government 

Component 
Unit- City 

Court 

Cash 

Nonnegotiable 
Certificates of 

Deposit Total Cash 

Deposits per Balance Sheet (Reconciled $ 13,852,079 $ 500,000. $ 14.352.079 $ 178.135 
bank balance) 

Deposits in bank accounts per bank $ 13j942,320 $ 500,000 $ 14,442,320 $ 225.805 

Bank balances exposed to custodial credit risk: 

a. Uninsured and uncollateralized 

b. Uninsured and collateralized With securities held 
by the pledging institution 

c. Uninsured and collateralized vyith securities held 
by the pledging institution's twst department or 
agent, but not in the entity's name 

Excess of FDIC insurance and pledged securities 

$ 18,236,938 

$ 3.794,618 

225,805 

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of 
GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 irnposes a statutory requirement on the 
custodial bank to advertised and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified bythe City of 
Zachary, Louisiana that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

Investments: 

Investments of the City of Zachary, Louisiana consist of certificates-of deposit. These securities are 
stated at tiieir falr value as required by GASB Statiement 31. Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Certairi Investments and Exterhallnvestment Pools. The City used quoted market values to determine 
fair value of the investments. 

Interest Rate Risk - The City of Zachary has no formal investment policy, but has adopted the 
state investment policy at LA RS 49:327. The City invests in investments with, maturities lirnited to 
five year as means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates. 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE B; CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS, continued 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a 
bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to it. The City of Zachary invests in 
certificates of deposits that are backed by FDIC and pledged securities, and U.S. government 
securities. The City has adopted the state investment policy at LA 49:327 and does not have any 
other policy that would further limit the investment choices. As of June 30, 2015,100% of the 
City's investment balances were exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution's trust department or agerit, but not jn 
the entity's narne. 

Concentratiori of Credit Risk-JJ^e City places no limits on the amount they may invest in any one 
issuer: 

At June 30v 2015, the City held certificates of deposit, with an original maturity greater than 90 
days, totaling $500,000. The^ investments are stated on the balance sheet at market value and 
are as follows: 

Descriptibhs Cost 
Fair 

Value 
Maturity 

Date 
Interest 

Rate 

Certificates of deposit $ 500,000 $ 500.000 7/15/15^9/12/15 .45-.80% 

Total Investments $ 500,000 $ 500.000 

NOTE 0: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

The receivables at June 30, 2015 are as follows: 

Description 
Fire department - state grant 
Rnes 
Sates tax 
Charge for sen/ices 
Garbage collection fees 
Commissions 
Fire department - miscellaneous 
Police department - miscellaneous 
911 Operations 
DEQ Federal loan project 
DOTD URAF 
Other 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 361,948 
15,730 

1.422,253 
260,012 
309,384 
75,178 
69,039 
46,625 

129,037 

61,298 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 

1,145,736 

16,851 

Total $ 2.750.504 $ 1.162,587 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE D: RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Customer deposits are; paid by customers upon a pplication of water service and are retumable to them 
upon termination of services. The District maintains an interest bearing account which Is designated 
specifically for meter deposits. At June 30, 2015, customer deposits amounted to $745,003. 

Certain resources are set aside for repayment of bond indebtedness and are classified as restricted 
assets on the Statement of Net Position because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and 
their use is limited by applicable bond ordinances. The following schedule summarizes the current year 
transactions in the major categories of these restricted accounts: 

Construction 
Account 

Bond Dobt 
SorvlceFund 

Bond Debt Service 
Reserve Fund 

Contingency 
Fund 

Beginning balance, Jiily 1,2014 
Add: 

Deposits 
Transfers fromutility checking 
Interest earned 

Total funds available 

1,053,180 

2,320,401 
500,000 

200,132 

210,000 
m 

410.409 

229,968 

678,000 
m 

908,252 

$ 200,000 

$ 
100,000 

300,000 

Less: 
• 

Cash disbursement 2,317,940 - -
Bond princpal & interest payments - 512,CT9 -• 
Transfers to utility checking MO.OdO •- - -
Service charges . • - . 

Ending balance $ 1,055,641 $ 410,409 $ 395.673 $ 300.000 

Total restricted assets of the Utility Fund were applicable to the following at June 30, 2015: 

2015 
Customer Deposits Accounts: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 

Utility Revenue Bond: 
Cash and Cash Equivaients 

Total 

$ 245,003 
500,000 

2,161.724 

$ 2,906,727 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE E: CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of changes in capital assets for governmental activities is as follows; 

Balance Balance 
6/30/2014 Additions Deletions ^ 6/30/2015 

Land $ 2,354,222 $ 152,413 $ $ 2,506,635 
Road Infrastructure 10.084i687 8.642,235 - 18.726,922 
Buildings and improvements 3,778,560 1,922,523 - 5,701^083 
Machinery and equipment 9,272,571 370,807 - 9,643,378 
Construction 1n progress- Streets 4.749,614 (187,508) 4.562.106 

Total Capital Assets $ 30.239,654 $ 11,087:978 $ (187,508) $ 41.140.124 

Primary Government 

L^d 
Ro^ infrastructure 
Buildings and Improvements 
Machinery and equipmerit 
Construction in prograss- Streets 

Total Accumulated Depredation 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Balance 
6^0/2014 

$ 
1,516,928 
1.588,595 
4.923.658 

Additions 

$ 8.029,081 $ 

253,813 
128.242 
498.081 

Deletions 

880.136 $ 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Balance 
6/30/2015 

1.770.741 
1,716,837 
5,421,639 

8,909,217 

Capital Assets 
Net of 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

$ 2,506.635 
16.956,181 

3,984,246 
4.221.740 
4.562,106 

$ 32.230.908 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30. 2015 was charged to the following goverrimentar 
functions: 

General government $ 626,323 
Streets 253.813 

$ 880,136 

A summary of changes in capital assets for business-type activities is as follows: 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings and improvements, 

Gas, water, sewer systems 
Machinery and equipment 

Total Capital Assets 

Business-Type Activities 
Balance 

6/30/2014 Additions 

36,354,301 
2,130,236 

41,095,918 

194,487 
13,840 

3,923,389 

Deletions 
Reclass-
Ifactions 

47,426 $ 3,000 
2,563,955 3,715.062 

Balance 
6/30/2015 

$ - $ 
(5,192,265) 

5,192;265 

50,426 
1,086.752 

41.741.053 
2,144,076 

45.022.307 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE E: CAPITAL ASSETS, continued 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Balance 
6/30/2014 Additions Deletions 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Balance 
6/30/2015 

Capital Assets 
Net of 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings and improvements 

Gas, water, isewer systems 
Machinery and equipment 

$ - $ 

15,207,661 
1,551,579 

- $ 

i 

,1,200,917 
145.454 

$ 

16,408i578 
1i697.033 

$ 50,426 
1,086,752 

25,332,475 
447,043 

Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 16,759,240 $ 1,346,371 $ $ 18,105.611 $ 26.916,696 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30,2015 for business-type activities totaled $1,346,371 ̂ 
and capitalized interest totaled $88;579, 

A summary of the changes in capital assets for the component unit is as follows: 

Component Unit 
Balance 
6/30/2014 Additions Deletions 

Balance 
6/30/2015 

Machinery and equipment $ 289,482 $ 47,057 $ $ 336,539 

Accurtiulated depreciation (192,307) (43.418) (235,725) 

Capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation _$ 97,175 $ 3,639 $ $ 100,814 

Depreciation expense for the year for the component unit ended June 30. 2016 totaled $43,418. 

NOTE F: INTERFUND RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE 

Interfund receivable and payable representing short-term borrowing at June 30,2015 were as follows: 

Fund 
Interfund 

Receivables 
Interfund 
Payables 

Special revenue fund $ - $ 
General fund 515,552 
Proprietary fund ^ 515.552 

515,552 $ 515,552 
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CITY OF 2ACHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE G: LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of changes Jn long-term debt: 

Governmental Activities: 
Public Street - bonds 
Claims and judgments -

Litigation 
OPEB Liability 
Net pension liability 
Compensated absences 

Business-Type Activities: 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liability 
Bonds payable 
Loan agreement 

June 30, 
2014 Additions Deletions 

June 30, 
2015 

Current 
Portion 

$ 10,000,000 $ - $ (470,000) $ 9,530,000 $ 505,000 

_ 2,650,000 2,650,000 1,100.000 
5;521.709 884.641 - 6,406;350 -

10,184,910 - (1.290,999) 8,893,911 -
635,364 144,383 - 779.747 -• 

$26,341,983 $: 3,679,024 $ (i;760;999) $28,260,008 $ 1,605,000 

$ 242,282 3,900 $ _ $ 246,182 $ 
2,403,212 - • (487,330) 1,915.882 -
8,865,152 1,667,029 (424,000) 10,108,181 .656,000 
1,570,912 - (83,900) 1,487,012 88,200 

$13,08i;558 $ 1,670,929 $ (995,230) $ 13,757,257 $ 744,200 

Component Unit 

In October 2011, the City Court executed a 60 month lease agreement with Dan Haggerty & Associates, 
Inc. for computer software in the amount of $160,000 and in ^pternber of 2014, the City Court 
executed an agreement for a prosecutor's program in the amount of ̂ 1,225 in which $27,612 vvas paid 
in 2015 fiscal year. 

The future minimum lease payments under these agreements as of June 30, 2015 are as follows: 

_ Prosecutor Software 
2016 $ 13,612 $ 32,000 

$ 13,612 $ 32,000 

Public Street Bonds 

In 2013, the City of Zachary, Louisiana was issued $10,000,000 of Public Street Bonds, Series 2013. 
The interest rate is 4.50% and interest payments are payable semiannually. Principal payments are 
made annually beginning October 1, 2014 through October 1,2028. These funds must be used for the 
widening and improvement of existing public roads and streets, construction of new public roads and 
streets, road beautification projects, and paying bond issuance costs. The following is a summary of 
loan transactions as of June 30, 2015: 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE G: LONG-TERM DEBT, continued 

Balance July 1,2014 $ 10,000,000 
Bonds issued 
Principal payments 470,000 

BaJarice, June 30, 2015 $ 9.530,000 

Current portion as of June 30,2015 $ 505,000 
Long-terni liability as of June 30, 2015 9.025.000 
Total liability as of June 30,2015 $ 9,530,000 

Loan Agreement - Business-Type Fund 

In September 2002. the Councif authorized the City to execute a loan agreement with the Louisiana 
LocarGovemment Environmental Facilities and Community Development Authority (the TCDA") fbrthe 
purpose of providing funds for the, construction of public works andiilnfrastructure related to the Central 
Senrice Pump Station and Force Main projects in an amount of $1,500,000. In August 2003, the City 
amended the drigirial loan agreement with LCDA for an additional $1,500,000 for the acquisition, 
construction, instailatibn,.and equipping of meter read: system for the various utilities. Advances under 
the loan agreement were drawn down as expenditures made on this project. The interest rate on these 
advances fluctuates weekly with changes in the Bond Market Association (BMA) Municipal Swap index. 
The average Interest rate on outstanding advances at June 30, 2015 was 1.26%. 

The future annual debt sen/ice requirements as of June 30,2015 are as follows: 

LCDA Loan 

Balance July 1, 2014 
Principal Payments 
Balance, June 3D, 2015 

Current portion as of June 30, 2015 
Long-term iiabiirty as of June 30,2015 
Total liability as of June 30.2015 

$ 1,570.912 
(83,900) 

$ 1,487,012 

$ 88,200 
1,398,812 

$ 1,487,012 
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CITY OF ZACHARY. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE G: LONG-TERM DEBT, continued 

Bonds Payable - Business-Tvpe Fund 

In 2012, the City of Zachary, Louisiana was issued $9,300,000 of Utilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 
from the State Revolving Fund Program through the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality, a 
partial flow through from the United States Environmental Protection Agency (see Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards Note 2). These funds must be used for the purpose of providing for 
constructing and acquiring improvements and extensions to the Utility system. As of June SO, 2015, 
$9145.931 was drawn on the loan. The bonds bear interest at .45% per annum and administrative fees 
at .50% with a maturity of 20 years. The bonds are payable in semiannual ihstallmerits of interest 
beginning in July, 2012 and annual installments of principal beginning in January. 2015. 

On November 26,2013, a second supplemental bond ordinance was adopted authorizing an additional 
issuance of $5,000,000 Utilities Revenue Bond, Series 2014 in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the above bonds. The funds are to be used for the same purpose as above. As of June 
3d. 2015. $1,386,250 was drawn on the loan. 

The following is a summary of the loan transactions as of June 30, 2015: 

Total 

Balance July 1,2014 
Bond proceeds 
Principal Payments 
Balance. June 30.2015 

Current portion as of June 30. 2015 
Long-term liability as of June 30,2015 
Total liability as of June 30, 2015 

$ 8,765,826 $ 99,326 $ 8;865,152 
380,104 1,286,924 1,667,028 

(424,000) - (424,000) 

$ 8,721.930 $ 1,386i250 $10,108,180 

$ 428,000 $ 228,000 $ 656,000 
8,293,930 1,158,250 9,452,180 

$ 8.721,930 $ 1,386,250 $ 10.108,180 

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30. 2015 including interest and 
administrative fees of $4,482,393 are as follows: 
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utility Revenue Utility Revenue 
Year Ending 

JurieSO 
Bonds 

Series 2012 * 
Bonds 

Series 2014 * 
LGDA 
Loan 

Public Street 
Bonds 

2Q16 " 508,825 240,086 110,040 922,487 
2017 5D9.'736 239,911 113,605 919.312 
2018 509,603 240,712 115,683 920,125 
2019 509,433 240,489 119,597 919,812 
2020 509,224 240.247' 123,492 918,375 

2021^2024 2,036,032 224,904 542.867 3,669,261 
2025^2029 2,726,057 - 520.427 4,566,099 
2030-2034 2,391,141 - - -

2035 - •- -

Total 
Current Maturities 

9,700,051 
(428,000) 

$ 9,272,051 

1,426,349 
(228,000) 

$ 1,198,349 $ 

1;645.711 
(88.200) 

1.557;511 

12,835.471 
(922,487) 

$ 11,912.984 

• The annual requirenrients were taken from a preliminary amortization schedule showing all 
drawdowns to date on the loans. When the projects are completed, the loans will be closed and 
new amortization schedules will be issued. 

NpTE H; FLOW OF FUNDS & RESTRICTIONS ON USE - BONDS PAYABLE 

A) BUSINESS TYPE FUND 
Air of the ihcome and revenues eamed or derived from the operation of the System shall be deposited 
daily as the same may be collected In the City's Utilities Revenue Fund" (the "Revenue Fund"). Funds In 
the Revenue Fund shall be expended in the following order of priority and for the following express 
purposes: 

1) The payment of all reasonable and necessary expenses of operation and maintenance of the 
System as are not provided for from other lawfully available sources. 

2) The establishment and maintenance of a "Utilities Revenue Bond Debt Service Fund" (the "Debt 
Service Fund"), sufficient in amount to pay promptly and fully the principal of and the interest on the 
Bonds, as they severally become due and payable, by transferring from funds in the Revenue Fund, 
after making the payments required by (a) above, to the Debt Service Fund monthly on or before the 
20**' day of each month of each year, at least a sum equal to 1/6^ of the interest and Administrative 
Fee, if any, failing due on the Bohds on the next Interest Payment Date and at least a sum equal to 
1/12**' of the principal falling due on the Bonds on any Principal Payment Date that occurs within the 
next ensuing twelve months, together with such additional proportionate monthly sum as may be 
required to pay said principal, interest, and Administrative F^ as the same become due. the City 
shail transfer from said Debt Service Fund to the paying agent(s) for all Bonds payable from the 
Debt Service Fund, or directly to the Owners, not less that three days prior to each Interest Payment 
Date, funds fully sufficient to pay promptly the principal, Interest, and Administrative Fee of the 
Bonds falling due on such date. 
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3) The establishment and maintenance of a "Utilities Revenue Bond Debt Service Reserve Fund" (the 
"Reserve Fund"), containing separate accounts for each series ofthe Bonds, each such account to 
be designated (as set forth in a Series Ordinance) as the "Series 2012 Account," the money in the 
accounts of Resen/e FUnd to be retained solely for the purpose of paying the principal of and 
interest on the respective series of the bonds payable from the Debt Service Fund as to which there 
would otherwise be default, by transferring from the proceeds of such series or from other available 
monies, or from the Revenue Fund (after making all required payments from said fund as 
hereinabove described), monthly or annually, such amounts as will increase the total amount on 
deposit in each account in the Reserve: Fund to a sum equal to the Resen/e Fund Requirement for 
the applicable Series of the Bonds. 

4) The establishment and maintenance of the "Depreciation and Contingency Fund" (the 
"Contingencies Fund"), to care for extensions, additions, inipfovements, renewals and replacements 
necessary to properly operate the System, by transiferring from funds in the Revenue Fund after 
making the payment required (1), (2), and (3) above to the Contingencies;Fund rrionthlyonor before 
the 20 day of each month of each year, a sum equal to five percent (5%) of the Net Revenues for 
the preceding month, provided that such sum is available after provisions is made for the payments 
required under paragraphs (1), (2), and (3) above. Such payments into-the Contingencies Fund 
shall continue until such time as there has been accumulate in the Contingencies Fund the sum of 
Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000), whereupon such payments may cease and need be 
resumed thereafter only if the total amount of money on deposit in said fund is reduced below the 
sum of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000), in which eyent such payments shall be resumed 
and continue until said nriaximum amount is again accumuliated. In addition to caring for extensionsi 
additions, improvements, renewals and replacements necessary to properly operate the Sy^em, the 
money In the Contingencies Fund may also be used to pay the principal of and the interest on the 
Bonds for the payment of which there is not sufficient money ,in the Debt Service Fund and Resen/e 
Fund described in paragraphs (2) and (3) above, but the money in said Contingencies Fund may 
also be used to pay the principal of and the interest op the, Bonds for the payment of which there is 
not sufficient money in the Debt Service Fund and Reserve Fund shall never be used for the making 
of improvements and extensions to the System orfor payrnent of principal or interest on Bonds if the 
use of said money will leave in said Contingencies Fund for the making of emergency repairs of 
replacements less than the sum of Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000). 

5) Any money remaining in .the Revenue Fund after making the above-required payments may be used 
by the City for the purpose of calling and/or purchasing and paying any bonds payable from the 
Revenues, or for such other lawful corporate purposes as the Goveming Authority may determine. 

B) GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

In order that the principal of and the interest on the Bonds will be paid in accordance with their terms 
and for the other objects and purposes hereinafter provided, the Issuer further covenants as follows: 
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the Revenues shall continue to be deposited each month, as received, in a special bank account 
maintained with the regularly designated fiscal agent of the Issuer and designated as the "Public Street 
Fund - 2013" (hereinafter called the "Revenue Bond Fund"). 

The funds on depoisit In the Revenue Fund shall be used in the following order of priority and for the 
following express purposes: 

1) The establishment and maintenance of the "Public Street Bond Sinking Fund- 2013." (hereinafter 
called the "Sinking Fund"), sufficient In amount to pay promptly and fully the principal of, prernium, if 
any, and the interest on the Bonds herein authorized, including any pari passu bonds issued 
hereafter in the manner provided by this Bond Ordinance, as they severally become due and 
payable, by transferring ftom the Revenue Bond Fund to the regularly designated fiscal agent of the 
Issuer, monthly in advance on or before the 26th day of each month of each year, a sum equal to 
one-sixth (1/6) of the interest falling due on the nextJnterest Payrnent Date and one-twelfth (1^2) of 
the principal falling due on the next principal payment date, together with such additional 
proportionate sum as may be required to pay said principal and. interest as the same respectively 
become due. Said fiscal agent shall transfer from the Sinking Fund to the paying agent bank or 
banks for aH bonds payable from the Sinking Fund, at least two (2) days,in advance of the date on 
whichpayment of principal or interest falls due, funds fully sufficient to pay promptly the principal and 
interest ao falling due on such date. 

All or any part of the moneys in the Revenue Bond Fund arid the Sinking Fund may be invested in 
Govemment Investments. All income derived from such Govemment Investments shall be added to the 
Revenue Bond Fund, and such investrrient shall, to the extent at any time necessary, be liquidated and 
the proceeds thereof applied to the purposes for which the Revenue Bond Fund was created. 

All moneys remaining in the Revenue Bond Fund on the day of each month In excess of (i) all 
reasonable arid necessary expenses of collection arid admiriistration of the Tax, and (ii) after making the 
required payments into the Sinking Fund for the current month and for prior months during which the 
required payments may not have been made, shall be considered as surplus. Such surplus riiay be 
used by the Issuer for any of the purposes for which the Tax Is authorized. 

The maintenance of the Public Street Revenue Bond Reserve Fund (hereinafter called the "Reserve 
Fund"), with regularly designated fiscal agent of the Issuer. The money in the Reserve Fund is to be 
retained solely for the purpose of paying the principal of and the interest on the Bonds payable from the 
aforesaid Sinking Fund as to which there would othenvise be default (except for certain earnings which 
may be owed the United States pursuant to Section 148(f) of the Code). On or before the 20^ day of 
each month following the delivery of the Bonds, an amourit equal to one thirty-sixth of the Revenue Fund 
Requirement shall be deposited in the Rieserve Fund and such deposits shalf continue until the Reserve 
Fund Requirement for the Bonds is satisfied. In the event that Additional Parity Bonds are issued 
hereafter, there shall be deposited into the Reserve Fund, from the proceeds of such Additional Parity 
Bonds and/or from any other source provided by the Issuer, such additional amounts (as may be 
designated in the ordinance authorizing the issuance of such Additional Parity Bonds) as will increase 
the total amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund within a period not exceeding three (3) years to a sum 
equal to the Reserve Fund Requirement. 
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If at any time it shall be necessary to use moneys in the Resen/e Fund for the purpose of paying 
principal or interest on Bonds as to which there would otherwise be default, then the moneys so used 
shall be replaced from the revenues first thereafter by the Revenue Bond Fund, not hereinabove 
required to pay the expenses of collecting and adnriinisteririg the Taxes or to pay current principal and 
interest requiremerits, It being the intention hereof that there shall as nearly as possible be at all times in 
the Reserve Fund the amount hereinabove specified. 

The Reserve Fund Requirement, in whole or in part, may be funded with cash investment obligations, or 
one or more Reserve Products, or a combination thereof. Any such Reserve Product must provide for 
payment on ariy iriterest or principal payment date (provided adequate notice is given) on which a 
deficiency exists (or is expected to exist) in amounts held hereunder for payrnent of the principal of or 
interest oh the Bonds due on such date which cannot be cured by amounts in any account held pursuant 
to this Bond Ordinance and available for such purpose, and shall name the Paying Agent of each issue 
of Outstanding Parity Bonds as the beneficiary thereof. The Reserve Product must be rated in the 
highest rating category by each Rating Agency. If a disbursement is made from a Reserve Product as 
provided above, the Issuer shall be obligated to reinstate the maximum limits of such disbursement from 
the first Revenues available pursuant to this Section or to replace such Reserve Product by depositing 
into the Reserve Fund pursuantto such sections, the maximum amount originally available under such 
Reserve Product, plus arnpurits necessary to reimburse the Reserve Product for previous 
disbursements under such Reserve Product, or a combination thereof. For purposes of this Section, 
amounts necessary to satisfy such reirnbursertierit obligations of the Issuisr to the Reserve Product 
Provider shall be deemed to be required deposits to the Reserve Fund^ and shall be applied to satisfy 
the obligations to the Reserve Product Provider. 

If the Reserve Fund Requirement is funded in whole or In part with cash or Investment Obligations and 
no event of default shall have occurred and be continuing hereunder, the Issuer may at any time in its 
discretion, substitute a Reserve Product meeting the requirements of the Bond Ordinance for the cash 
and investment obligations in the Reserve Fund and the Issuer may then withdraw such cash and 
investment obligations from the, ReseiYe Fund expehd such replaced funds and obligations for the 
purposes the Bonds were issued and, in the event the Bonds were issued for rnore than one purpose for 
the purposes and in the sarhe proportion as the purposes for which the Bonds were issued so long as (i) 
the same does not adversely affect any rating by a Rating Agency then in effect with respect to the 
Bonds, and (ii) the Issuer obtains opinion of Bond Courisel to the effect that such actions will not, and in 
and of themselves, adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds (if not 
taxable obligations) for federal income tax purposes. 

The Revenue Bond Fund. Reserve Fund, and the Sinking Fund provide for iii this Section shall all be 
and constitute trust funds for the purposes provided in this Bond Ordinance, and the Owners of the 
Bonds issued pursuant to this Bond Ordinance are granted a lien oh ail such funds until applied in the 
rnanner provide herein. The moneys in such funds shall at all times be secured to the full extent thereof 
by the bank or trust company holding such funds in the manner required by the laws of the State of 
Louisiana. 
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All moneys remaining the Revenue Fund on the 20"* day of each month after making the required 
payments into the Sinking Fund and the Reserve Fund for the current month and for prior months during 
which the required payments may have not have been made, shall be considered as surplus. Such 
surplus may be used by the l^uer for any of the purposes for which the imposition of the Taxes is 
authorized. 

All or any part of the moneys in the Reserve Fund shall, si the written request of the issuer, be,invested 
in direct obligations of the United States of America, rnaturing in five (5) years or less. The income on 
such funds shall beiadded to the Revenue Bond Fund, provided that if the amount in the Reserve Fund 
at any time is less than the Reserve Fund Requirement, then any incorne derived from such investments 
in the Reserve Fund shall: be retained In the Reserve Fund. Such investments shall, to the extent at any 
time necessary, be liquidated and the proceeds thereof applied to the purposes for which the respective 
funds are herein created. 

NOTE I: ACCpUNTS, SALARIES. AND OTHER PAYABLES 

A summary of payables at June 30,2015 is as follows: 

Class of Payables 

Special 
General Revenue 
Fund Funds 

Proprietary 
Funds 

Aecounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

Total 

$ 534,244 $ 793,696 $ 280.430 
134.757 _____ 597.288 

$ 669,001 $ 793,696 $ 877,718 

NOTE J: AD VALOREM TAXES 

Ad valorem taxes are levied and are actually billed to the taxpayers in December of each year. Billed ad 
valorem taxes become delinqueht on January 2™^ of the following calendar year. If ad valorerti taxes are 
unpaid by June 30. the property is offered at a tax sale, and thirty days after the tax sale a lien is placed 
on the property. 

The East Baton Rouge Parish Sheriff s office bills and collects the property taxes for the Clty. using the 
assessed values determined by the tax assessor of East Baton Rouge Parish. For the 2015 calendar 
year, taxes pf 3.17 mjjs were levied (6.75 mils authorized) on property with assessed valuations totaling 
$129,767,79,0 and were available for general purposes. 

Ad valorem taxes collected during the year ended June 30, 2015 totaled $448,465. 
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NOTE K: PENSION PLAN 

The City of Zachary's office implemented Government Accpunting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
68 on Accounting and Financial Reporting Related to Pensions and Statement 71 on Pension 
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB 68. 

pension plans Net Pension Liability and report the following disclosures: 

Substantially all employees of the City of Zachary are members of either, the Municipal Employees 
Retirement System of Louisiana, the Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, the 
Firefighters' Retirement System, or the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement Systerti. The systems 
are cost-sharing, multipl^mployer defined benefit pension plan administered by separate boards of 
trustees. Pertinent information relative to each plan follows: 

Municipal Emplov^s Retirement Svstem of Louisiana (MERS) 

Plan Description: 
All of the City's full-time general employees participate in the MERS, a; multiple-employer, cost-
sharing pension plan administered by a separate board of tmstees. The System was originally 
established by Act 356 of the 1954 regular session of the Legislature of the State of Louisiana. The 
System provided retirement benefits to employees of all incoiporated villages, towns and cities within 
the State which do not have their own retirement system and which elect to become members of the 
System. MERS issues an annual publicly available financial report thatiincludes financial statements 
and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to Municipal 
Employees' Retirement S^tem of Louisiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 
70809, or by calling (225) 92S4810. 

Retirement Benefits: 
Any member of Plan A who was hired before January 1,2013 can retire providing the member meets 
one of the following criteria; (1) any age with twenty-five (25) or more years of creditable service, (2) 
Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) years of creditable service, (3) any age with five (5) years of 
creditable service eligible for disability benefits; (4) survivor's benefits require five (5) years of creditable 
service at death of member, or (5) any age with 20 years of creditable senrice, exclusive of military 
service with an actuarially reduced early benefit. Any member of Plan B who was hired before January 
1,2013 can retire providing the rriember meets one of the following criteria: (1) any age with thirty (30) 
years of creditable service, (2) age60 with a minimum often (10) or more years of creditable service, 
(3) any age with ten (10) years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits, or (4) survivor's 
benefits require five (5) years creditable service at death of member. Eligibility for Retirernent for Plan 
A and Plan B members hired on or after January 1. 2013 is as follows: (1) age 67 with seven (7) or 
more years of creditable service, (2) age 62 with ten 0) or more years of creditable service, (3) age 55 
with thirty (30) or more years of creditable service, or (4) any age with twenty five (25) years of 
creditable service, exclusive of military service and unused side leave. However, any member retiring 
under this subsection shall have their benefit actuarially reduced from the earliest age of which the 
member would be entitled to a vested deferred benefit under any provision of this section, if the 
member had continued service to that age. 
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Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan A shall consist of 
an amount equal to three percent of the member's monthly average final compensation multiplied by 
his years of creditable service. However, under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the 
benefits are limited to specified amouiits. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B shall consist of 
an amount equal to two percent of the member's monthly average final compensation multiplied by his 
years of creditable service. However, under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits 
are limited to specified amounts. 

Survivor Benefrts; 
Upon death of any member of Plan A with five (5) or more years of creditable,service, not eligible for 
retirement, the plan provides for beriefits for the surviving spouse and/or minor children as outlined in 
the statutes. 

Any member of Plan A who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves a sun/iving 
spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the surviving spouse 
on the date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application and are paid in lieu of.any 
other survivor benefrts. 

Upon death of any member of Plan B with five (5) or more years of creditable service, not eligible for 
riormai retirement, the plan provides for benefrts for the surviving spouse as outlined in the statutes. 

spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the surviving spouse 
on the date of death. Such benefits will, begin only upon proper appiicatiori and are paid in lieu of any 
other survivor benefrts. 

DROP Benefits; 
In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance any member of Plan A 
or B who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for 
up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During partidpation in the plan, erhployer 
contributions are payable butemployee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefrts would be 
payable, had the person elected to cease employment and received a service,retirement allowance, are 
paid into the DROP fund. Interest is eamed when the member has completed DROP participation. 
Interest earnings are based upon the actual rate of return on the investments identified as DROP funds 
for the period. In addition, no cost-of-living increases are payable to participants until employment 
which made them eligible to become members of the System has been terminated for at least one full 
year 
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Upon terminatipn of employment prior to or at the end of- the specified period of participation, a 
participant in the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the payments 
into the account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or any other method of 
payment if approved by the board of trustees. If a participant dies during participation in the DROP, a 
lump sum equal to the balance in his account shall be paid to his named bieneficiary or. if non, to his 
estate. If employment is not terminated at the end of the three years, payments into the DROP fund 
cease and the person resumes active contributing meriibership in the System. 

Disability Benefits: 
For Plan A, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive s disability benefit if he has at least five 
years of creditable service, is not eligible for norrnal retirement and has been officiaily certified as 
disabled by the State Medical Pjsabijity Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, a rtiertiber of Plan 
A shall be paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of forty-fiye percent of his final average 
compensation or three percent of his final average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable 
service whichever Is greater or sn amount equal to three percent of the rnember's final average 
cpmpensatjori rnultipiied by his years of creditable service projected to his eariiest^norma! retirement 
age. 

For Plan B. a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he. has at least ten 
years of creditable service; in which he would receive a regular retirement under retirement provisions. 
A member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he has at least ten years of 
creditable service, is npt eligible for normal retirement, and has been officially certified as disabled by 
the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, a member of Plan B shall be 
paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of thirty percent of his final average compensation or two 
percent of hjs final average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service, whichever is 
greater; or an amount equal to two percent of the member's final average compensatiori multiplied by 
his years of creditable service, projected to his earliest normal retirement age. 

Cost of Living Increases: 
The System is authorized under state law to grant a cost of living increase to members who have been 
retired for at least pne year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each 
full calendar year since retirement and may orily be granted if sufficient funds are available from 
investment income in excess of norma! requirements. State law aijows the System to grant an 
additional cost of living increase to all retirees and beneficiaries who are age sixty-five and above equal 
to 2% of the benefit being received on October 1,1977, orthe original benefit, if retirement commenced 
after that date. 

Deferred Benefits: 
Both plans provide for deferred benefits for members who terminate before becoming eligible for 
retirement. Once the member reaches the appropriate age for retirement, benefits become payable. 
Benefits are based on statutes in effect at time of withdrawal. 
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Employer Contributions: 
According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each 
year. For the year ending June 30,2014, the actual employer contribution rate was 18.75% for Plan A 
and 8.75% for Plan B. For the year ended June 30, 2014, the actuarially determined employer 
contribution rate was 20.62% for Plan A and 9.82% for Plan B. The actual rate differs from the 
actuariallyxequired rate due to state statutes that require the contribution rate be calculated and set two 
years prior to the year effective. In accordance with state statute, the System receives ad valorem 
taxes and state revenue sharing funds. These additiphal sources of income are used as ertiployer 
contributions and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities, but are not 
considered special funding situations^ 

Plan members are required by state statute to contribute 9.50 percent of their annual covered salary to 
the System, and The City of Zachary is required to make contributions at an actuarially determined rate.: 
The rate paid by the CHy during the past fiscal period was 19.75 percent of annual covered payroll. 
Contributions to the System also include one-fourth of one percent of the taxes shown to be collectible 
by thetax rolls of each parish. The contribution requirements of plan members andithe City of Zachary 
are established and amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 111103, the 
employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year 
based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year, the City's cPritributions to the MERS 
during the years ended June 30. 2015, 2014, and 2013, totaled $418,766, $395,800, and $441,491, 
respectively, equal to the required contributions. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources: 
At June 30, 2015, the City reported a liability of $1,224,9.09 for its govemmentaj activities arid 
$1,915,882 for its business-type activities for its proportionate share of the net pension liability for 
MERS, totaling $3,140,791. the net pension liability was measured as of June 30,2014 and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation of 
that date. The Cit/s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-

employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2014, the City's proportion for MERS was 1.2238%, 
which was a decrease of .0473% from its proportion measur^ as of June 30, 2013. 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $83,023 for its 
govemmentaj activities for MERS less employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and 
differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions, $4,012, and 
recognized pension expense of $129,857 for its business-type activities for MERS less employer's 
amortization of change in proportionate share and difference between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions. $6,274. 
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At June 30, 2015, the City. reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions for its governmental activities and business-type activities for MERS from the 
following sources: 

Diffemces between exp^ed and actual 
experience 

Changes of assumptions 
Netdlfference between proj^ed and 

actual earnings on pensionjplan 
investments 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between Employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date 

Total 

Governmental Actlvrtles 
Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Business-Type Activities 
Deferred 

Outflowsof 
Resources 

Deferred 
inflows of 
Resources •$ $ (64.397) $ $ (ioo;724) 

- (113,644) (177,752) 

- (34,789) (54,414) 

163,319 - 255,447 

163,319 $ (212,830) $ 255;447_ $ (332.890) 

The City reported a total for MERS of $163;319 for its governmental activities and $255,447 for its 
business-type activities as defeired outflow of resources related to pension contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement period of June 30,2014, which vwll be recognized as a reduction in net 
pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources arid deferred inflows of resource related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Governmental 

Activities 
$ (80,345) 

(80,345) 
(29,080) 
(29.077) 

$ (218,847) 

Business-Type 

Activities 
$ (125,668) 

(125,668) 
(45,485) 
(45.480) 

$ (342,301) 
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Actuarial Assumptions: 
A summary of actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total net pension liability for 
MERS as of June 30, 2014 is as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2014 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Actuarial Assumptions; 

,^pected Remaining 
Service Lives 3 years for Plan A and 4 yeara for Plan B 

Investment Rate of Return 7:75%, net of investment expense 
Projected Salary Increases 5.76% (3% inflation, 2.75% nieritj 
Mortality Rates RP-iOdO Employee Table for Active Members 

RP-2000 Health Annuitant Table for healthy annuitante 
RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table'for disabled 

annuitants 
Cost of Living Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is based 

on benefits currently being paid by the System and 
includes previously grant^ cost of living increases, The 
present values do not include provisions for potential 
future increases not yet authorized by the Board of 
trustees. 

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was determiried usirig a building-
block method in which best-estlrriate ranges of expected future real rates of retum (expected retums, 
net of pension plan investment expense and iriflation) are deyeioped for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of retum by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage arid by adding expected 
inflation and an adjustment for the eff^ of rebalancing/diversification. The target allocation and best 
estimates of geometric real rates of retum for each major asset class Included In the pension plan's 
target asset allocatioh as of June 30. 2014 are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term Expected 
Target Asset Portfolio Reaf Rate 

Asset Class Allocation of Return 
Publicequity 50% 2.75% 
Public fixed .income 15% 0.83% 
Alternatives 35% 1.92% 
Totals 100% 5.50% 

Inflation 2.80% 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 8.30% 
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Mortality Rate: 
The mortality rate assumption used was-verified by combining data from this plan with three other 
statewide plans which have similar workforce-composition in order to produce a credible experience. 
The aggregated data was collected over the period July 1,2006 through June 30,2010. The data was 
then assigned credibility weighting and combined with a standard table to produce current levels of 
mortality. This mortaNty was then projected forward to a period equivalent to the estimated duration of 
the System's liabilities. Annuity values calculated based on this mortality were compared to those 
produced by using a setback of standard tables. The result of the procedure indicated that these tables 
would produce liability values apprpximating the appropriate generational mortality tables used. 

Discount Rate: 
The discount rate used to;measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. the projectiph of cash flovvs 
used to determine the discount fate assumed that contributions from plan members'wiiljbe made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participatirig employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the 
System's actuary. Basedion those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net positionwas projected to be 
availabteito make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected.rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Propoitionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes In the 
Discount Rate: 

discount rate for MERS as well as thp City's proportionate share of the NPL would be.if it were 
calculated using the a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage higher than 
the current rate used by MERS: 

Govemmental Activities 

Net Pension Liability 

Net Pension Liability 

1.0% Decrease 
6:75% 

Current 
Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 

7.75% 8:75% 

$ 1,702,175 $ 1,224,909 .$ 817,755 

Business-Type Activities 

1.0% Decrease 
6.75% 

Current 
Discount Rate 1:0% Increase 

7.75% 8.75% 

$ 2,662,376 $ 1,915,882 $ 1,279,053 
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Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MPERSI 

Plan Description: 
All of the City's full-time police employees participate in the MPERS. a multiple-employer, cost-sharing, 
defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate board of trustees. MPERS was established by 
Act 189 of 1973 to provide retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to municipal police officers of 
Louisiana. Benefits are established and amended by state statute. MPERS issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplernentary Information. The report 
may be obtained by writing to Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, 7722 
Office Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 70809-7601 or by calling (225) 929-7411. 

Retirement Benefits: 
Membership Prior to January 1,2013. A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been 
a member of the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of 
creditable service and is age 50: or has 12 years creditable service and is age 55. A member Is 
eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of the Systern for 20 years of creditable 
service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefit rates are three and one-third percent of average final compensation (average monthly 
earnings during the highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per 
number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits 
range from forty to sixty percent of the rhemberis average final compensation for the surviving 
spouse. In addition, each child under age eighteen receives benefits equal to ten percent of the 
mernberis average final corripensation or $200.00 per month, whichever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January 1,2013. Member eligibility for regular retirement, eariy retirement, 
disability and survivor benefits are based on Hazardous Duty and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans. 
Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligiblefor regular retirement after he has b^n a 
member of the System and has 25 yearscf creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable 
service at age 55. Under the Non Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement 
after he has been a member of the System and has 30 years of creditable service atany age, 25 years 
of creditable service at age 55, or 10 years of creditable service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a 
member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a rriember of the System for 20 years of 
creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three percent and two 
and a half percent, respectively, of.average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the 
highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years of 
creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salai^. 
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Upon death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving 
spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the benefits range from 
twenty-five to fifty-five percent of the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In 
addition, each child under age eighteen receives ten percent of average final compensation or $200 
per month whichever is greater. If deceased member had less than ten years of service, beneficiary will 
receive a refund of enriployee coritributions only. 

Cost of Living Adjustments: 
The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual cost-of-living adjustments computed on the 
amount of the current regular retirement, disability, benefidary or suryiypf s beriefit. not to exceed 3% in 
any given year. The Board |s authorized to provide an additional 2% COLA, computed on the 
members original benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, sun/ivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years 
of age or older on the cut-off date which determines eligibility. 

No regular retiree, sujvivor or beneficiary shall be eligible to receive a cost-of-living adjustment until 
benefits have beeri received at least one full fiscal year and the payment of such COLA, when 
authorized, shall not be effective until the lapse of at least one-half of the fiscal year. 

Members who elect early retirement are not eligible for a cost of living adjustment until they reach 
regular retirement age. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan: 
A member is eligible to elect to enter the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) when he is eligible for 
regular retiremerit based on the members' sub plan participation. Upon filing the application for the 
program, the employee's active membership in the System is terminated. At the entry date into the 
DROP, the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited into ̂ e DROP 

application. The duration of participation in the DROP is thirty six months or less. If employment is 
terminated after the three-year period the participant may receive his benefits by lump sum payment or 
a true annuity. If employment is not terminated, active contributing membership into the System shall 
resume and upon later termination, he shall receive additional retirement benefit based on the 
additional service. For those eligible to enter DROP prior to January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall 
earn interest subsequent to the termlhatibh of DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage 
point below the percentage rate of retum of the System's investment portfolio as certified by the actuary 
on an annual basis but will never lose money. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to January 
1, 2004, an irrevocable election is made to eam interest based on the System's investment portfolio 
retum or a money market investment retum. This could result in a negative earnings rate being applied 
to the account. 

If the member elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to agovemment 
money market account. 
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Initial BenefitOption Plan: 
In 1999, the State Legislature authorize the System to establish an Initial Benefit Option program. 
Initial Benefit Option is available to members who are eligible for regular retirement and have not 
participated in DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one-time single sum payment 
of up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly retirement benefit for 
life. Interest is cornputed on the balance based on same criteria.as DROP. 

Employer Contributions: 
Contributions for all members are actuarially determined as required by state law but carlnot be less 
than 9% of the employees' eamable compensation excluding oyertihfie but Including state supplemental 
pay. 

For the year ended June 30,2014, total contributions due for erfiplbyers and employees were41 %. The 
employer and employee contribution rates for all members hired prior to January 1, 2013 and 
Hazardous Duty members hired after January 1,2013 were 31 % and 10%, respectively. The employer 
and employee contribution rates for all Non-Hazardous Duty memberc hjred after January 1,2013 were 
33% and 8%, respectively: The employer and employee contribution rates for all rnembers whose 
eamable compensation is less than of equal to the poverty guidelines Issued byfhe United States 
Department of Health and Human Services were 33.5% and 7.5%, respectively: The actuarial required 
employer and employee combined contribution for June 30. 2014 was:41.53%. 

Plan members are required by state statute to coritribute 10.00 percent of their annual covered salary 
to the System, and the City of Zachary Is required to make contributions at an actuarially determined 
rate. The rate paid by the City during the past fiscal period was 31.50 percent of annual covered 
payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City of Zachary are established and 
amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer 
contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the 
results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City's contributions to the MPERS during the years 
ended June 30, 2015,2014, and 2013 total $653,745, $635,028, and $636;059, respectively, equal to 
the required contributions. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and .Resources and Deferred 
inflows of Resources: 
At June 30, 2015, the City reported a liability of $5,109:617 for Its proportionate share of the net 
pension (lability for MPERS. The net penslon liabldty was measured as of June 30,.2014 and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation of 
that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. At June 30. 2014, the City's proportion for MPERS was .8167%, 
which was an increase of .0898% from Its proportion measured as of June 30,2013. 

For the year ended June 30,2015, the City recognized pension expense of $813,694 for MPERS plus 
employer's amortization of change In proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions, $36,823. 
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At June 30,2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions for MPERS from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected end actual earnings on 

pension plan investments 
Changes ih proportion and differences between Erhployer 

contributions and proportionate share .of contributions 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ $ (89,867) 
- (1.383) 

- (1,166,298) 

538.506 (30,686) 
653,745 -

$ 1,192,251 $ 11,278,234) 

The City reported a total for MPERS of $653,745 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30,2014, which will be recognized 
as a reduction in net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions wjtl be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year 
2015 $ (146,126) 
2016 (146,035) 
2017 (146,126) 
2018 (295,212) 

$ (733,499) 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
A summary of actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total net pension liability for 
MPERS as of June 30, 2014 Is as follows: 
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Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

inflation Rate 
Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 

Investment Rate of Return 
Projected Salary Increases 

June 30. 2014 
Entry Age Normal Cost 

3% 

4 years 
7.5%, net of investment expense 

Years of Service 
1 
2 

3-19 
20-29 

30 & Over 

Salary Growth Rate 
10.00% 
6.00% 
4.30% 
5.50% 
4.00% 

Mortality Mortality assumptions were set based upon an experience 
study performed by the prior actuary on plan.data for the 
perbd July 1, 2003 through June 30. 2008. The RP-20p0 
Employee Mortality Table was selected for active members. 
The RP-2000; Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table was selected 
for healthy annuitants and t)eneficiaries. The RP-20pO 
Disabled Lives Mortality Table was selected for disabled 
annuitants. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was deterrtiiried uslrig a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected retums. 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of retum by the target.asset anpcatlon percentage and by adding expected 
inflation and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The target allocation and best 
estimates of geometric real rates of retum for each major asset cia^ included in the pension plan's 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2014 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 
Equity 
Fixed income 
Alternatives 
Other 
Totals 

Target Asset 
Allbcatlon 

52% 
20% 
23% 
5% 

100% 

Long-Term Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate 

of Return 
5.43% 
2.35% 
4.51% 
4.07% 
4.82% 

Inflation 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

3.25% 
8:07% 
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Discount Rate: 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 

System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods ofprojectedbenefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability: 

Mortality Rate: 
The mortality rate assumption used was verified by upon an experience study performed by the prior 
actuary on plan data for the period July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2008 and review of similar law 
enforcement mortality. The data was then assigned credibility weighting and combined with,a standard 
table to produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected forward to a period 
equivalent to the estimated duration of the System's liabilities. Annuity values calculated based on this 
mortality were compared to those produced by using a setback of standard tables. The result of the 
procedure indicated that these tables would produce liability values approximating the appropriate 
generational mortality tables. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate: 
The following table represents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) using the 
discount rate for WIPERS as well as the City's propbrtibnate share of the NPL would be; if it were 
calculated using the a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage higher than 
the current rate used by MPER^: 

Current 
1.0% Decrease Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 

6:50% 7.50% 8.50% 

Net Pension Liability $ 7,377,412 $ 5,109.617 $ 3,204.877 

Firefighters' Retirement System iFRS) 

Plan Description: 
All of the City's full-tirne fire employees participate in the FRS^ a multiple-employer, cost-sharing, 
defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate board of trustees. FRS was established by 
Act 434 of 1979 and amended by LRS 11:2251-11:2272 to provide retirement, disability, and survivor 
benefits to participating, eligible firefighters In Louisiana. Benefits are established and amended by 
state statute. FRS issues a publicly available financial report that Includes financial statements and 
required supplementary Information. The report may be obtained by writing to Firefighters' Retirement 
System of Louisiana, P.O. Box 94095, Baton Rouge. Louisiana, 70806, or by calling (225) 925-4060. 
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Retirement benefits: 
Any person who becomes an employee as defined jn RS 11:2252 on and after January 1.1980 shall 
become a member as a condition of employment. 

No person who has attained age fifty or over shall become a member of the System, unless the person 
becomes a. member by reason of a merger or unless the System received an application for 
membership before the applicant attained the age of fifty. No person who has not attained the age of 
eighteen years shall become a member of the System. 

Any person who has retired from service under any retirement system or pension fund maintained 
basicallyfor publicofficers and employees of the;state, its agenciesior political subdivisions, and who is 
receiving retirement bene% therefrom may become a. member of this. System, provided the person 
meets all other requirements,for membership. Service credit from the retirement system or pension 
plan frprn which the member is retired shall not be used for reciprocal recognition of service with this 
System, or for any other purpose in order to attain eligibility or increase the amount of service credit in 
this System. 

Deferred Retirement Option Pjan: 
After completing 20 years of creditable service and age 50 or 25 years at any age, a member may elect 
to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 36 months. 

Upon commencerhent of participation in the deferred retirement option plan, employer and employee 
contributions to the System cease. The mohthiy retifemeht benefit that would have been payable is 
paid into the deferred retirement option plan account. Upon termination of employment, a participant in 
the program shall receive, at his option, a lump-sum payment from the account ofan annuity based on 
the deferred retirement option plan account balance in addition to his regular monthly benefit. 

If employment is npt terminated at the end of the 36 months, the participant resumes regular 
contributions to the System. No payments may be made from the deferred retirement option plan 
account until the participant retires. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan: 
Effective June 16.1999, members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may 
elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an initial benefit option (IBO) in an amount up to 36 months of 
benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. Such amounts may be withdrawn or remain 
in the IBO account earning interest at the same rate as the DROP account. 

Employer Contributions: 
Employer contributions are actuarially determined each year. For the year ended June 30. 2014, 
employer and employee contributions for members above the poverty line were 28.25% and 10.0%, 
respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for those members below the poverty line 
were 30.25% and 8.0%, respectively. 
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Plan members are required by state statute to contribute 10.00 percent of their salary to the System, 
and the City of Zachary is required by this statute to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to pay 
benefits when due (currently 28;25%). The.contribution requirements of plan member and the City of 
Zachary are established and amended by state law. As required by state law, the employer 
contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the 
results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City's contributions to the FRS during the years 
ended June 30,2015,2014, and 2013 totaled $374,721, $321,640, and $252,560, respectively, equal 
to the required contributions. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflovvs and Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources: 
At June 30, 2015, the City reported a liability of $2,528,496 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for FRS. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014 and the total 
pension jjabljlty used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation of 
that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the prpjected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. At June 30,2014, the City's proportion for FRS was .5682%, which 
was an increase of .0273% frorn its proportion measured as of June 30, 2013. 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recogriized pension expense, of $346,234 for FRS plus 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate shiare and differences between erpployer 
contributioris and proportionate share of cohtributiohs, $6,668. 

At June 30.2015, the City reported defeired outflows of resources arid deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions for FRS from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assurhptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 

contributions and proportionate share, of contributions 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ $ (61,888) 
- (1,553) 

- (224,427) 

121,580 (5.557) 
374,721 -

$ 496.301 $ (293,425)^ 

The City reported a total for FRS of $374,721 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30,2014, which will be recognized 
as a reduction if) net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 20|6. 
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:: 

Year 
2015 $ (47,529) 
2016 (47,529) 
2017 (47,530) 
2018 (47,530) 
2019 8,583 
2020 8,581 

$ (172,954) 

Actuarial Assurnptipns: 
A su mmary of actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total net pension liability for 
FRS as of June 30. 2014 is as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30. 2014 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Inflation Rate 3% per annum 
^pected Remaining 
Service Lives 7 years 

Investment Rate of Return 7-5% per annum 
Projected Salary increases Vary from 15,0%.in the first two years of service to,5.5% 

after 14 years 
Mprtalrty Mortality assumptions were set after reviewing an experience 

study performed on plan data for the period July 1,2004 
through June 30,2009, Pre and post-mortality life 
expectancies of participants based on the RP-2000 Healthy 
Annuitant Mortality Table, set back one year, for healthy 
annuitants and beneficiaries. RP^2000 Ehiployee Mortality 
Table, set back one year, for actjve members. RP-2000 
Disabled Lives Mortality Table was selected for disabled 
annuitants. 

Cost of Living Adjustments Only those previously granted 

The estimated long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method In which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
Inflation. The long-term geometric expected rate of return was 8.10% as of June 30, 2014. Best 
estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class included In FRS' target asset allocation as of 
June 30, 2014 are summarized in the following table: 
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Asset Class 
Fixed income 
Equity 
Alternatives 
Other 
Totals 

Inflation 
Expected Arithmetic Nomina) Betum 

Target A^et 
AUdcation 

24% 
51% 
15% 
10% 

100% 

Long-Term Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate 

of Return 
1.93% 
.5.31%' 
5.70% 
3.81% 
4: 

3.25% 
7.94% 

Discount.Rate: 
The discount rate used to rneasure the total pension liability was 7-5%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discountTate assumed that contributlbns from plan members will be made at the 
current cohtfibutioh rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved by RRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the 
System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net positjon was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payrnehts of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected fate:0f retum?bri pension plan Investnients was applied to all periods of projecteddenefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Mortality Rate; 
The mortality rate assumption used vyas set based upon ah experience study performed on plan data 
for the period July 1,2004 through June 30,2009. the data was then assigned credibility weighting and 
combined with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected 
forward to a period equivalent to the estimated duration of the System's liabilities. Annuity values 
calculated based on this mortality were compared to those produced by uising a setback of standard 
tables. The result of the procedure indicated that the tables used would produce liability values 
approximating the appropriate gerierationalmortality tables. 

Sensitivity of the Ernployer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liaibility to Changes In the 
Discount Rate: 
The following table represents the Git/s proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) using the 
discount rate for FRS as well as the City's proportionate share of the NPL would be if it were calculated 
using the a discount rate that is oiie percentage-point lower or one percentage higher than the current 
rate used by FRS: 
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Current 
1.0% Decrease Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 

6.50% 7.50% 8.50% 

Net Pension Liability $ 3.717,298 $ 2.528.496 $ 1.526.724 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 

Plan Description: 
Alj of the Zachary's City Court (a component unit) employees, Ihcjuding judges, participate in the 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS), a multiple-employer, cost-sharing, defined 
benefit pension plan. Section 401 of Title 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes (La. R.S. 11:401) 
graiits to LASERS Board of Trustees and the Louisiana Legislature the authority to review 
administration, benefit terms, inv^ments, and funding of the plan. LASERS issues a publicly available 
financial report that can be obtained at www.lasersonline.orq. 

Retifenrient Benefits: 
The age and years of creditable service required In order for a member to retire with full benefits are 
established by statute^ and vary depending on the member's hire date, eniployen .and job classification. 
The majority of LASERS rank and file members may either retire with full benefits at any age upon 
completing 30 years of creditable service or at age 60 upon completing five to ten years of creditable 
.seryice depending.on their plan. Additioiially, members may choose to retire with 20 years of service at 
any age, with an actuarially reduced, benefit. The basic annualTetirement benefit fpr members is equal 
to 2,5% to 3.5% of average compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service. 

Average compensation is defined as the memberis average annual eamed compensation for the 
highest 36 consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to July 1, 2006. For 
members hired July i,,2006 or later, average compensation is based on the member's average annual 
eamed compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment, the maximum annual 
retirement benefit cannot exceed the lesser of 100% of average compensation or a certain specified 
dollar amount of actuarially determined monetary limits, which vary depending upon the member's age 
at retirement. Judges, court officers, and certain elected officials received an additional annual 
retirement benefit equal to 1.0% of average compensation multiplied by the nurriber of years of 
credftable service in their respective capacity. As an altemative to basic retirement benefits, a member 
may elect to received their retirement benefits under any one of six different options providing for 
reduced retirement benefits payable throughout their life, with certain benefits being paid to their 
designated beneficiary after their death. 
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NOTE K: PENSION PLAN, continued 

Act 992 on the 2010 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session, changed the benefit structure for LASERS 
members hired on or after January 1,2011, This resulted in three new plans: regular, hazardous duty, 
and judges. The new regular plan Includes regular members and those members who were formerly 
eligible to participate in specialty plans, excluding hazardous duty and judges. Regular members and 
judges are eligible to retire at age 60 after five years of creditable service and, may also retire at any 
age. with a reduced benefit, after 20 years of creditable service. Hazardous dufy members are eligible 
to retire with twelve years of creditable service at age 55,25 years of creditable service at any age or 
with a reduced benefit after 20 years of creditable service. Average compensation will be based on the 
member's average annual earned compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment 
for all three new plans. Members in the regular plan will received a 2.5% accrual rate, hazardous duty 
plan a 3.33% accrual rate, and judges a 3.5% accrual rate. The extra 1.0% accrual rate for each year 
of service for court officers, the governor, lieutenant govemo^ legislators, House clerk, sergeahfe at 
arms, or Senate secretary employed after January 1,2011, was eliminated by Act 992. Specialty plan 
and r^ular members, hired prior to January 1, 2011, who are hazardous duty employes have the 
option to. transition to the new hazardous duty plan. 

A member leaving employment before attaining rninimum retirement age; but after cornpleting certain 
.minimum senrice requirements, become eligible for a benefit provided the member lives to the 
minimum service retirement age, and does not withdraw their accumulated contributions. The minimum 
sen/ice requirement for benefits varies depending upon the member^s employer and senrice 
classifications but generally is ten years of service. 

Deferred Retirement Benefits: 
The State Legislature authorized LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP). 
When a member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree even though they 
continue to work and draw their saiary for a period of up to three years. The el^ion is irrevocable 
once participation begins. During DROP participation, accumulated retirement benefits that would have 
been paid to each retiree are separately tracked. For members who eritered DROP prior to January 1, 
2004, interest at a rate of one-half percent less than the System's realized retum on its portfolio (not to 
be less thanzero) will be credited to the retiree after participation ends. At that time, the hiember rhust 
choose among available altematives for the distribution of benefits that have accumulated in the DROP 
account. Members who enter DROP on or after January 1, 2004, are required to participate in 
LASERS Self-Directed Plan (SDP) which is administered by a third-party provider. The SpP'ailows 
DROP participants to choose from a menu of investment options for the aiiocatipn of their DROP 
balances. Participants may diversify their investments by choosing from an approved list of mutual 
funds with different holdings,, management styles, and risk factors. 

Members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate irj DROP may elect to receive at the 
time of retirement an initial benefit plan (IBO) in an amount up to 36 mbriths of benefits, with an 
actuarial reduction of their future benefits. For merribers who selected the IBO option prior to January 
1, 2004, such amount may be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account eaming interest at a rate at one-
half percent less than the System!s realized retum on its portfolio (not to be jess than zero). Those 
members who select the IBO on or after January 1, 2004 are required t0:enter the SDP as;described 
above. 
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NOTE K; PENSION PLAN, continued 

Disability Benefits: 
All members with ten or more years of credited service who become disabled may receive a maximum 

age. 

Upon reaching age 60. the disability retiree may receive a regular retirement benefit by making 
application to the Board of Trustees. 

For injuries sustained in the line of duty, hazardous duty personnel in the Hazardous Outy Services 
Plan will receive a disability benefit equal to 75% of firial average compensation: 

S urvivor Benefits: 
Certain eligible surviving dependents receive benefits based on the deceased membei^s compensation 
and their relationship to the deceased. The deceased mernber who was in state sen/ice at the time of 
death must have a minihfium of five years of service credit, at least two of which were earned 
immediately prior to death, or who had a mihimum of twenty years of service credit regardless of when 
earned in order for a benefit to be paid to a minor or handicapped child. Benefits are payable to an 
unmarried chjld until age 18, or age 23 if the child remains a full-time student. The aforementioned 
minimum service credit requirement is ten years for a surviving spouse with ho minor children, and 
benefits are to be paid for life to the spouse or qualified handicapped child. 

Permanent Benefit Increases/Cost of Living Adjustments: 
As fully described in Title 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes, the System allows for the payment of 
permanent benefit increasesi also known as cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) that are funded 
through Investment earnings when recommended by the Board of Trustees and approved by the State 
Legislature. 

Contributions: 
Contribution requirements of active employees are gbvemed by Section 401 of Title 11 of the Louisiana 
Revised Statutes (La. R.S. 11:401) and may be amended by the Louisiana Legislature. Employee and 
employer contributions are deducted from the member's salary and remitted to LASERS by 
participating employers. The rates In effect during the year ended June 30,2015 for the various plans 
follow: 
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Plan 
Plan 

Status 
Regular Employees and Appellate 
Law Clerks 

Pre Act 75 (hired before 7/1/2006) 
Post Act 75 (hired after 6/30/2006) 

Optional Retirement Plan (QRP) 
Pre Act 75 (hired before 7/1/2006) 
Post Act 75 (hired after 6/30/2006) 

Legislators 
Special Legislative Employees 
Judges hired before 1/1/2011 
Judges hired after 12/31/2010 
Corrections Prirnary 
Corrections Secondary 
Wildlife Agents 
Peace Officers 
Alcohol Tobacco Control 
Bridge Police 
Hazardous Duty 

Employee 
Contribution 

Rate 

Employer 
Contribution 

Rate 

Closed 7.5% 37.0% 
Open 8.0% 37.0% 

Closed 7.5% 37.0% 
Closed 8.0% 37.0% 
Closed 11.5% 41.2% 
Closed 9.5% 41.2% 
Closed 11.5% 41.2% 
Open 13:0% 36.2% 

Closed 9.0% 39.9% 
Closed 9:0% 40.8% 
Closed 9.5% 4b.9% 
Closed 9:0% 41.5% 
Closed 9.0% 44.8% 
Closed 8:5% 35.3% 
Open 9.5% 35.6% 

The City's contractually required composite contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2015 was 
41.50% for the City and 18.50% for the City Court, actuarially determined as an amount that, when 
combined with employee contributibris, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by 
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued 
Liability. Contributions to the pension plan frbm the City were $3,686 for the year ended June 30.2015 
and bontributions to the pension from City Court were $33,3.68 for the.year ended June 30, 2015. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense^ and Deferred Outflows and Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources: 
At June 30,2015, the City reported a liability of $30,889 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability for LASERS and the City Court reported a liability of $241,299. The net pension liability was 
measured as of June 30. 2014 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pensiori liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation of that date. The City and City Court's proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension 
plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At 
June 30,2014, the City's proportion for LASERS was .00049%, which was a decrease of .00001 % from 
its proportion measured as of June 30,2013: At June 30,2014, the City Court's proportion for LASERS 
was .00386%, which was an increase of .00077% from its proportion measured as of June 30,2013. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $2,437 for LASERS plus 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions, $185. The City Court recognized pension 
expense of $19,355 for LASERS plus ernployer's amortization of change in proportionate share and 
di^erences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions, $604. 

At June- 30,2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions for LASERS from the.following sources: 

Dtffemces between expected and actual 
experience 

ChangeS'Of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and 

actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 

Changes In proportion and differences 
between Employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent to 
the measurehient dale 

Total 

Primary Government 
Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Cbmponent Unit 
Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ $ (550) $ $ (4.300) 

-- (3,908) - (30.527) 

(364) 148 56,164 2.417 

3,686 - 33.368 -

3^322 (4.310) $ 89.532 $ (32.410) 

The City reported a total for LASERS of $3,686 and the City Court reported a total for LASERS of 
$33,368 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement period of June 30,2014, which will be recognized as a reduction in net pension liability 
for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Primary 
Government 
$ (1.215) 

(1.215) 
(940) 
(940) 

% (4.310) 

Component 
Unit 

$ (9.177) 
(9.177) 
(7.028) 
(7.028) 
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NOTE K: PENSION PLAN, continued 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estirhate ranges of expected future real rates of retum (expected returns,, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of retum by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation and an adjUstrhent for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The target allocation and best 

allocation as of June 30, 2014 are summarized In the follovying table: 

Asset Class 
Cash 
Domestic equity 
International equity 
Domestic Fixed Ihcdme 
International Fixed Incorne 
Alternative Investments 
Global Asset Allocation 
Totals 

Target Asset 
Ailocation 

0% 
27% 
30% 
11% 
2% 

23%: 
7% 

100% 

Long-Term Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate 

of Return 
0.50% 
4.69% 
4.83% 
2:34% 
4.00% 
8.09% 
3.42% 
5.78% 

Discount Rate: 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAG taking into consideration the recommendation of the 
System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of retum on pension plan Investments was applied to a|l periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
A summary of actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total net pension liability for 
LASERS as of June 30, 2014 Is as follows: 
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Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost ft/lethod 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Inflation Riate 
Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 

Investment Rate of Return 
Mprtality 

Termination, Disability, and 
Retirement 

Salary increases 

Cost of Living Adjustmente 

June 30. 2014 
Entry.Age Normal 

3.% per annum 

3 years 
7.75% per annum 
Non-disabled members - Mortality rates based on RP-20GO 
Combined Health Mortality Table with mortality improvement 
projected to 2015. 
Disabled members - Mortality rates based on the RP-2d00 
Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, with no projection for 
mortality improvement. 
Termination, disability, and retirement assumptions were 
projected based on a.fiveryear (2009-2013) experience 
study of the Systerti's members. 
Salary increases were projected based on a 2009-2013 
experience study of the System's memtjers. The salary 
increase ranges for specific ̂ "pes^bf merribers are: 

Lower Upper 
Member Tvoe Range Ranae 
Regular 4.0% 13.0% 
Judges 3.0% 5.5% 
Corrections 3.6% 14.5% 
Hazardous Duty 3:6% 14.5% 
Wildlife 3.6% 14.5% 

The present value of future retirement bfenefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and'includes 
previously granted cost of living increases. The projected 
benefit payments do not include provisions for potential 
future increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees 
as they were deemed not to be substantively automatic. 

Sensitivity of the Employees Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate: 
The following table represents the City and City Court's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(NPL) using the discountrate for LASERS as well as the City and City Court's proportionate share of 
the NPL would be if it were calculated using the a discount rate that Is one percentage-point lower or 
one percentage-higher than the current rate used by LASERS: 
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NOTE K: PENSION PLAN, continued 

Net Pension Liability 

Net Pension Liability 

Primary Government 
Current 

1.0% Decrease Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 
6.75% 7.75% 8.75% 

$ 39,618 $ 30,889 $ 23,490 

Component Unit 
Current 

1.0% Decrease Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 
6.75% 7.75%, 8.75% 

,$ 294,489 . $ 241,299 .$ 174,609 

Summarized Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 

At June 30, 2015, the City reported a total liability of $8,893,911 for its govemmental activities and 
$1,915,882 for its business-type activities for its proportionate share of the net pension liability and the 
City Court reported a total liability of $241,299 for its proportionate share of the net pehsioh liability. 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized total pension expense of $1,245,388 for its 

in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions, $39,264 for its governmental activities and $6,274 for its business-type activities. The 
City Court recognized total pension expense of $19,355 plus ernployeris amortization of change in 
proportionate share and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions, $604. 
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At June 30, 2015, the city reported total deferred outflows of resources and total deferred inflows of 
resources related tO: pensions from the following sources: 

Governmental Activities 

PlfTemces beNyeen expeded and actual 
experience 

Changes of assumptions 
Net dlfTerence between projected and 

actual earnings on pension plan 
Investments 

Changes In proportion and differences 
between Employer corrtributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contn'butions subsequent to 
the measurement date 

total 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
inflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ $ (216.702) ,$ $(100,724) $ $ (4.300) 

(2.936) r - - -

- (1,498.277) - (177,752) - (30.527) 

659.722 (70.885) - (54,414) 56,164 2.417 

1.195.471 - 255,447 33,368 . 

$1.855.193 ${1.788^800) $ 255;447 $ (332.890) $ 89;532, $ !f32.410) 

NOTE L: OTHER POSt-EWIPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description. The City of Zachary's medical/dental benefits are provided through a comprehensive 
medical plan and are made available to employees upon actual retirement 

The employees are covered by one of three retirement systems: first, the Municipal Employees' 
Retirement'System of Louisiana, whose retirement eIigibilltyj(D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 
25 years of service at any age; or age 60 and 10 years of services: second, the Municipal Police 
Retirement System of Louisiana, whose.retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 
25 years of service at any age; age 50 and 20 years of service; or, age 55 and 12 years of service; and, 
third, the Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) 
provisions are as follows: 25 years of service at any age; age 50 and 20 years of service; or, age 55 and 
12 years of service. Complete plan provisions are included in the official plan documents. 

Life Insurance coverage in the flat amount of $2,500 is provided to retirees (not dependents) and the 
blended rate (for active and retired combine) Is approximately $0;84 per $1,000 of insurance. The 
employer pays 90% of the "cost" of the retiree life insurance, but It is based on the blended rate. Since 
GASB 45 requires the use of "unblended" rates, we have used the 94GAR mortality table described to 
"unblend" the rates so as to reproduce the composite blended rate overall as the rate structure to 
calculate the actuarial valuation results for life insurance. All of the assumptions used for the valuation 
of the medical benefits have been used except for the trend assumption; zero trend was used for life 
insurance. 

Contribution Rates. Employees do not contribute to their post employment benefits costs until they 
become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The plan provisions and contribution rates are 
contained the official plan documents. 

69 



CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE L: OTHER POST-EMPLOYWIENT BENEFITiS, continued 

Fund Policy. Until 2008, the City of Zachary recognized the cost of providing post-employment medical 
and life benefits (City of Zachary's portion of the retiree medical and life benefit premiums) as an 
expense when the benefit premiums were due and thus financed the cost of the post-employment 
benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. In 2015, the City of Zachary's portion of health care and life 
insurance funding costs for retired employees totaled $310,087. 

Effective with July 1,2008. the City of Zachary implemented Govemrhent Accounting Standards Board 
Statement,Number 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post employment Benefits 
Other than Pensions (GASB 45). this amount Was applied toward the Net OPEB Benefit Obligation 
shown in the following table. 

Annual Required Contribution. City of Zachary's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) Is an amount 
actuarially, determined in accordance with GASB 45. The Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is the 
sum of the Normal Cost plus the contribution to amortize the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL). A level 
dollar, closed amortization period of 30 years (the maximum amortization period allowed by GASB 
43/45) has been used for the post-employment benefits. The actuarially corhputed ARC is as follows: 

2015 
NomfialCost $ 511,358 
30-year UAL amortization amount 781,823 

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 1,293,181 

Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation (Asset). The table below shows City of Zachary's Net Other 
Post-employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation (Asset) for fiscal year ending June 30, 2015: 

2015 
Beginning Net OPEB Obligation 

(Asset) 7/lfe014 $ 5,521.709 
Annual required contribution 1,293,181 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 

(Asset) 220,868 
ARC Adjustment (319,321) 
OPEB Cost 1.194,728 
Contribution 
Current year retiree premium (310.087) 
Change In Net OPEB Obligation 884,641 
Ending Net OPEB Obligation 

(Asset) 6/30/2015 $ 6,406,350 

70 



CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE L: OTHER POST-EWIPLOYWIENT BENEFITS, continued 

The foliowing table shows the City of Zachary's annual post employment benefits (PEB) cost, 
percentage of the cost contributed, and the net unfunded post employment benefits (FEB) liabiiity forthe 
last year and this year 

Post 
Employment 

Benefit 
Medical/Ufe 
Medical/Life 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30, 2015 
June 30, 2014 

Annual 
GPEBCost 
$ 1,194.728 
$1,159,516, 

Percentage 
Of Annual 

Cost 
Contributed 

NetOPEB 
Obligation 

(Asset) 
26.95% 
26.94% 

$6,406,351 
$5,521,7091 

Funding Status and Funding Progress. In 2015, the City of Zachary made no contributions to its poist 
employment benefits plan. The plan was not funded, has no assets, and hence has a funded ratio of 
zero. As of July 1,2014 the most recent actuarial valuation, the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) at the 
end of the year June 30.2015 was $14,060,141 which is defined as that portion, as deterrriined by a 
particular actuarial cost method (the City of Zachary uses the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method), of the 
actuarial present value of post employment plan benefits and expenses which is not provided by normal 
cost; 

;2015 

Actuarial Accrued Liability 
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 
Unfunded Act Accrued Liability 

(UAAL) 
Funded Ratio (Act Val. Assets/AAL) 

Covered Payroll (active plan members) 
UAAL as a percentage of covered 
payroll 

$ 14,060,141 

14,060.141 
0% 

5,978,394 

235.18% 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. The actuarial valuation for 
post employment benefits includes estimates and assumptions regarding (1) turnover rate; (2) 
retirement rate; (3) health care cost trend rate; (4) mortality rate; (5) discount rate (Investment return 
assumption); and (6) the period to which the costs apply (past, current, or future years of services by 
employees). Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
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The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive 
plan (the plan as underwood by the City of Zachary and its employee plan members) at the time of the 
valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the City of Zachary and its plan members to that 
point. The projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the 
potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations oh the pattern of cost sharing between City of 
Zachary and plan members In the future. Consistent with the long-term perspective of actuarial 
calculations, the aGtuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 

Actuarial Cost Method. The ARC is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method. The 
ernpioyer portion of the,cost for retiree medical care in each future year is determined by projecting the 
current cost levels using the healthcare cost trend rate and discounting this projected amount to the 
valuation date using the other described pertinent actuarial assumptions, including the investment retum 
assumption (discount rate), mortality, and tumover. 

Actuariai Value of Plan Assets. There are not any plan assets. It is anticipated that In future 
valuations, shpuid funding take place, a, smoothed market value consistent with Actuarial Standards 
Board ASOP 6, as provided In paragraph nunriber 125 of GASB Codification Section PSO. 

Turnover Rate. An age-related turnover scale based on actual experience as described by 
administrative staff has been used. The rates, when applied to the active employee census, produce an 
annual turnover rate of approximately 10%. 

Post employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements. Ba^d on past experience, it has been 
assumed that entitlement to benefits will commence three years after retirement eligibility (D.R.OP. 
entry), as described above under "Plan Description," except that police and fire personnel were 
assumed to wait until age 60 and 10 years of service instead of age 55 and 12 years of service. Medical 
benefits are provided to employees upon actual retirement. 

Investment Return Assumption (Discount Rate). GASB Codification P50 states that the investment 
retum assumption should be the estimated long-term investment yield on the investnriehts that are 
expected to be used to finance the payment of benefits (that is, for a plan which is funded). Based on 
the assumption that the ARC will not be funded, a 4% annual investment return has been used In this 
valuation. 

Health Care Cost Trend Rate. The expected rate of increase in medical cost is based on a graded 
schedule beginning with 8% annually, down to an ultimate annual rate of 5.0% for ten years out and 
later. 

Mortality Rate. The 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002, based on a fixed 
blend of 50% of the unloaded male mortality rate and 50% of the unloaded female mortality rates, was 
used. This is a recently published mortality table which has been used in determining the value of 
accrued benefits in defined benefit pension plans. Projected future mortality improvement has not been 
used since it is our opinion that this table contains sufficiently conservative margin for the population 
involved in this valuation. 
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NOTE L; OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, continued 

Method of Determining Value of Benefits. The "value of benefits" has been assumed to be the portion 
of the premium after retirement date expected to be paid by the employer for each retiree and has been 
used as the basis for calculating the actuarial present value of GPEB benefits to be paid. The employer 
pays a percentage of the cost of the medical insurance for the retiree and dependents. The percentage 
is 90% of the total premium for employee only coverage and 75% of the total premiuni for fartiily 
coverage. The fates to which these percentages apply are blended rates between active and retired. 
We have therefore estimated the "unblended" rates to be 130% of the blended rates for pre-Medicare 
eligibility and 80% of the blended rates for posit-Medicare eligibility coverage. The Dental plan was 
included in the medical portion of this valuation but zero trend was used for the dental of the prehfiium. 

Inflation Rate; Iricluded in both the Investment Return Assurription and the Healthcare Cost Trend 
rates above is an implicit inflation assumptiofi of 2.50% annually. 

Projected Salary Increases. This assumption Is not applicable since neither the benefit structure nor 
valuation methodology involves salary. 

Post-retirement Benefit Increases. The plan benefit provisions In effect for retirees as of the valuation 
date have been used and it has been assumed for valuation purposes that there will not be any changes 
in the future. 

Below is a summary of OPEB cost and contributions for the year last four fiscal calendar years. 

OPEB Costs and Contributions 

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY2015 

OPEB Cost $ 1,126,645 $ 1.159;516 $ 1,194,728 

Contribution _ _ 
Retiree premium 289,215 312.352 310,087 

Total coritributibh and premium 289.215 312,352 310,087 

Change in net OPEB obligation $ 837,430 $ 847.164 $ 884;641 

% of contribution to cost 0.00% 0:00% 0.00% 
% of contribution plus prenriium to cost 25:67% 26:94% 25:95% 
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CITYOF ZACHARY. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE M: OPERATING TRANSFERS 

Operating transfers in and out are listed by fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,2015 as follows: 

Operating Transfers 
In Out 

General Fund: 
Component Unit-City Court $ 60,000 $ 

Debt Service Fund 1,296,888 
Special Revenue Fiind 1.296.888 
Component Unit - City Court: 

General Fund „ 60,000 

Totals $ 1.356.888 $ 1,356,888 

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the 
fund that:statute or budgetxequires to expend them. These transfers were eliminated in.pfeparation of 
the Government-Wide Financial Statements. 

NOTEN: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The City of Zachary incurs expenditures on behalf of the City Court of Zachary. These expenditures 
include compensation to City Court personnel along with the related pension cost and employee 
benefits. During the year ended June 30, 2015 the City paid $382,704 on behalf of City Court. 

City Court makes distributions to the City of Zachary for collection of various fees and fines. In addition, 
City Court makes an, annual payment to the gerieral fund of the City. During the year ended June 30, 
2015 City Court paid $60,000 to the City of Zachary. 

NOTE O: COMPONENT UNIT - DISTRICT INDIGENT DEFENDER FUND - GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
REVENUES 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the major sources of governmental fund revenues were as follows: 

Local Government: 
Statutory fines, forfeitures, fees, court costs, arid other $ 835,147 

74 



CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE P: LITIGATION, CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS 

There are eight pending lawsuits in which the City of Zachary is currently involved. The City Attorney 
states that there Is no significant liability on behalf of the City for seven of these lawsuits. The estimated 
exposure ranges from $5,000 to $50,000 per suit for seven lawsuits. 

The City Is involved in an adverse suit with the Zachary Housing Partners. The Zachary Housing 
Partners were alleged wrongful denial of building permits for apartment complex on McHugh Road. An 
adverse result was received from the JDC. A Sumrnary hearing was appealed to the 1st Circuit 
which upheld decision of the Trial Court: This was affirmed by the 1®* Circuit and Writ denied by the 
Supreme Court of Louisiana. The matter was settled on October 15.2015 by compromise,between the 
parties calling for annual status reports to the court following annual paynrients to plaintiffs by the City. 
The compromise is a structured payout of $2,650,000 over the next six years. The schedule, is as 
follows: 

11-18-20.15^$1,100;000 
11-18-2016 600,000 
11-18-2017 275.000 
11-18-2018 275,000 
11-18-2019 200,000 
11-18-2020 200,000 

The $2,650,000 was recorded as a liability on the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2015. 

NOTE Q; NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

During the current fiscal year, the Clty of Zachary implemerited Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Sfatement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions." GASB Statement 
No. 68 establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements related to pensions for governments 
whose employees are provided with pensions through plans covered by Statement No. 67. The net 
effect of the entity-wide Statement of Net Position for the prior year that resulted from the adoption of 
GASB 6815 as follows: 

Primaiy Government 
Governmental 

Activities 
Business-Type 

Activities Total 
Component 

Unit 

Net Position June 30. 2014, as previously reported $ 25,359,626 $ i7.241,0M $ 42.600.714 $ 174.485 

Net Pension Uabilily at June 30.2014 (10,184,910) (2,403,212) (12.588,122) (224.950) 

Deferred Outflow of Resources 1,114,254 241.438 1,355,692 26.760 

Net Postion. June 30,2014, as restated $ 16,288,970 $ 15,079.314 $ 31,368,284 $ (23.705) 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE R; SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

These financial statements considered subsequent events through December 10, 2015 the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 

On November 10,2015, the Crty of Zachary, Louisiana entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement 
with the YMCA to provide the City with the use of a portion of the facilities (the "City of Zachary 
Sponsored Multi-Purpose Training Room").on the YMGA premises located in Zachary, Louisiana. The 
City of Zachary, Louisiana would use the room as needed and for the reservation and utilization of the 
space for its future use and purpose. 
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EXHIBIT I 
CITYOFZACHARY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
GENERALFUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2015 

Original Final 
Budget Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 7,568,500 $ 8,305,500 $ 8,592,996 $ 287,496 
License and permits 482,500 527;500 563,524 36,024 
Intergovernmental 725,000 1,800,000 1,904,668 304,668 
Charges for sendees 1,200,000 1,147,500 1,294,040 146,540 
Comrnissions 1.175,000 1,325,000 1,404,853 79,853 
Fines and forfeits 185,000 200,000 224;344 24,344 
Proceeds from loan - - - -
Miscellaneous 758,000 525.000 542.176 17,176 

TOTAL REVENUES 12.094.000 13.630.500 14.S26;601 896,101 

EXPENDITURES 
General Government 3,454,100 5,236,300 4,722,448 513,852 
Court 425.750 425,750 382,704 43,046 
Public Safety -

Police 4,150,250 4,150,250 3,899,673 250,577 
Fire 2;774,250 2:794,250 2,703,750 90,500 

Streets 826,500 791,000 664,331 126,669 
Sanitation 1,050,000 1,100,000 1,105.874 (5.874) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12.680.850 14,497.550 13i478,780 1.018.770 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (586,850) (867,050) 1,047,821 1,914.871 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer from city court 80,000 60,000 60,000 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 80.000 60,000 60,000 -

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
AND OTHER SOURES OVER 
EXPENDITURES (506,850) (807,050) 1,107,821 1,914.871 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 8,187.336 8,187,336 8,187,336 . 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 7,680,486 $ 7,380,286 $ 9,295,157 $ 1,914.871 
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EXHIBIT J 
CITY OF ZACHARY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES^ AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

REVENUES 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual Variance 

Taxes- sales tax 
Intergovernmental incon^ 
Other - interest 

28,000 

5,000 

SiOOO 28,518 19,518 

TOTAL REVENUES 33,000 9,000 28,518 19.518 

EXPENDITURES 
Sales tax collection fee 
Interest ex^nse 
Operarting exppense - supplies 
Capttal outlay- streets. 

15,000 

505.000 
270,000 

16,000 

5,000 
325,000 

13,317 

82.889 
8,607,139 

1,683 

(77.889) 
(8,282.139) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 790,000 345,000 8,703,345 (8,358,345) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (757.000) (336,000) (8,674,827) (8,338,827) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) 
Loan proceeds 
Transfers from (to)dther funds 
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) 

(1,296.888) 
(1^296,888) 

(1,296,888) 
(1;296;688) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
AND OTHER iSOURCES OVER 
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (757,000) (336,000) (9,971,715) (9,635,716) 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

10.292,674 10,292,674 10,292,674 

$ 9,535,674 $ 9.956,674 $ 320,959 $ (9.635;71S) 
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EXHIBIT K 
CITY OF ZACHARY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES/EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
DEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

REVENUES 

Taxes - sales tax 

Public Street 
Bonds 

1,530,786 

TOTAL REVENUES 1,530,786 

EXPENDITURES 
Prindpal 
Interest expense 
Bond issue costs and other 

470.000 
439,425 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 909,425 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCINGSOURCES (USES) 
Transfers from (to)other funds 

621.361 

1.296,888 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)OF REVENUES 
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER 
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 

FUND BALANCES • BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

1,918.249 

826,115 

$ . 2i744,364 
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EXHIBIT L 
CITY OF 2ACHARY 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Unfunded 
Actuarial UAAL as a 

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Percentage 
Valution Value of Accrued Liabilities Funded Covered of Covered 

Date Assets Uabllitles (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

July 1.2014 $ $ 14,060,141 $ 14.060,141 0:00% $ 5.978.394 235.18% 

July 1.2013 $ $ 13,789.400 $ 13.789.400 0.00% $ 6,343.279 217:39% 

July 1.2012 ? - $ 13,259,038 $ 13.259,038 0:00% $ 6,390,968 207.47% 
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CITY OFZACHARY 
SCHEDULE OF CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA'S PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

EXHIBIT M 

Employer's 
Employer Employer Proportiohate Share 
Proportion proportionate of the Net Pension plan Fiduciary 

of the Share of the Employer's Liability (Asset) as a Net Position 
Year Net Pension. Net Pension Covered Percentage of Its as a Percentage 

Retirement Ended Liability Liability Employee CoveredjEmployee of the Total 
System June 30, (Asset) (Asset) Payroll Payroll Pension Liability 

Municipal Employees' Reliremeht.System 2015 1.2238% $ 3,140,791 $ 2.120.342 148.1266% 73.99% 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System .2015 ,0.8167% $ 5,109.617 $ 2,075,384 246.2010% 75.10% 

Firefighters' Retirement System 2015 0.5682% $ 2,528,496 $ 1,281,096 197:3698% 76.02% 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System -

General Government 2015 0.0005% $ 30,889 1$ 8;882 347.7708% 65.00% 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System -

Zachary City Court 2015 0.0037% $ 241,299 $ 80,914 298.2166% 65.00% 

Schedule Is Intended to show Information for 10 years, Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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CiTYOFZACHARY 
SCHEDULE OF CITY OF ZACHARV. LOUISIANA'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015 

EXHIBITN 

Retirement 
System 

Year 
Ended 

June 30, 

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution 

Contributions in 
Relation to 
Contractual 

Required 
Contributions 

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess) 

Employer's 
Covered 

Employee 
Payroll 

Contributions 
as a % of 
Covered 

Employee 
Payroll 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 2015 $ 418,766 $ 418,766 $ $ 2.120.342 19.7499% 

Municipal Police Employees' RetiremenfSystem 2015 $ 653.745 $ 653,745 $ $ 2.075.384 31:5000% 

Firefighters' Retirement System 2015 $ 374,721 $ 374.721 $ 1.281,096 29:2500% 

Louisiana State Ernployees' Retirement System -

General Government 2015 $ 3iRR6 $ 3,686 $ $ 8,882 41.4997% 

Louisiana Slate Employees' Retirement System -

Zachary City Court 2015 $ 33,368 $ 33.368 $ $ 80,914 41.2388% 

Schedule Is Intended to show Information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

SCHEDULE 1 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Variance -
Firial Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Taxes: 
Ad valorem - industry $ 80,000 $ 87.575 $ 7,575 
Ad valorem - other 350,000 360,890 10,890 
Beer tax 18,600 18,408 (92) 
Sales tax 7.857,000 8.126,123 269,123 

Total taxes 8.305^500 8,592,996 287,496 

Licenses and permits: 
Occupational licenses 340,000 338,537 (1;463) 
Building permits 85,000 94,849 9,849 
Electrical contractor license 8,000 10,800: 2,800 
Electrical perrtiits 25,000 33i623 8,623 
Other contractor license 11,000 12i450 1,450 
Other permits 58,500 73,265 14,765 

Total licenses and permits 527,500 563^524 36,024 

Intergovernmental: 
7,780 911 operations 245,000 252,780 7,780 

City ^ parish.street maintenance 75,000 83,102 8,102 
Grant - police department 20,000 20,882 882 
Grant- other 910,000 1,120,578 210,578 
Transportation fund 25,000 25.510 510 
Fire District #1 315,000 391,816 76,816 
Grant - fire department 10,000 10,000 

Total intergovernmental 1,600,000 1,904,668 304,668 

Charges for services: 
Park revenue 77,500 89,779 12,279 
Inspection fees 7,500 14,082 6,582 
Historical Village revenue - 200 200 
Public works fees • - 92,163 92,163 
Refuse collection charges 1.050i000 1,080,398 30,398 
Refuse billing fees 12,500 17,418 4,918 

Total charges for services 1,147,500 1,294^040 146,540 

Commissions: 
Cable franchise fee 290,000 291,106 1,106 
Sale of electricity 775.000 815,746 40,746 
Sale of insurance 260,000 298,001 38,001 

Total commissions 1,325,000 1,404,853 79,853 
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GITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

SCHEDULE 1 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2015 

Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Fines and forfeits 200.000 224.344 24.344 

Miscellaneous: 
Interest income - 28 28 
City court 60,000 60,000 -
Marshal's fund 75,000 74,027 (973) 
Sale of equipment 1,000 641 (359) 
Park revenue - 48,539 48;539 
Rental income -12,000 13,800 1,800 
Photo speed enforcement 2,000 1,783 (217) 
Fire 70,000 69;218 (782) 
Police 191,500 221,497 29,997 
Proceeds - - -
All other 173,500 112,643 (60,857) 

Total miscellaneous 585.000 602.176 17.176 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT: 

Salaries - administrative 372,500 370,388 2,112 
Sales tax collectidn fee 72,500 67,207 5,293 
Parish tax repayment - - -
Office expense 27.000 22,837 4,163 
Electiicity 17,000 12,685 4,315 
Supplies and maintenance 17,500 16,410 1,090 
Insurance 325,000 190,781 134,219 
Payroll taxes: -

- Medicare- 5,000 4,467 533 
- F.I.C A and unemployment tax 2,500 1,163 1,337 

Worker's compensation insurance 250 68 182 
Capital outlays 70,000 67,060 2,940 
Hurricane clean up -
Telephone 13,000 12,872 128 
Uniforms 1,500 370 1,130 
Contract services 24,500 20,817 3,683 
Computer expense 120,000 96,850 23,150 
Phone allowance 3,500 ,2,535 955 
Assessment roll fee 7,000 950 6,050 
Code book expense - - -
Official journal 12,500 8,516 3,984 
Dues, donations, and subscriptions 12,500 11,653 847 
Miscellaneous 12,750 12,055 695 
Election expense 7,000 6,643 357 
Travel 4,000 1,400 2,600 
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CITY OF 2ACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2015 

SCHEDULE 1 

Variance ^ 
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Schools and seminars 21.750 2,461 19,289 
Retirement 80,000 77,194 2,806 
Drug testing 1,500 1,188 312 
Attorney fees - - -
Audit 18,000 13,690 4,310 
Legal fees 97,000 96,891 109 
Insurance consultant 6,000 5,800 200 
Bank fees 1,000 393 607 
Coke machine 250 - 250 
Health insurance 47,000 41,642 5,358 
Attorney's health insurance - - -
Total 1.400.000 1.166,986 233.014 

Beautlfication: 
Salary 70,000 58,280 11,720 
PICA and medicare 1,500 753 747 
Health insurance 20,000 14,070 5.930 
Worker's compensation insurance 1,500 438 1,062 
Miscellaneous 2,000 2,435 (435) 
Vehicle expense 8,000 3,818 4,182 
Beaupcatibn retirement 15,000 13,189 1,811 
Beautification supplies 15,000 14,651 349 
Total 133.000 107,634 25.366 

Public Relations: 
Animal control fees 65,000 63,730 1,270 
Mayor's prayer breakfast 7.000 6,873 127 
Community center 9,000 8.119 881 
Economic developrnent 177.000 176,924 76 
Christmas expense 18.000 17,590 410 
Senior citizen center 21,000 20,616 384 
Public Relations expense 23,000 22,742 258 
Food pantry 12,500 11,523 977 
Total 332.500 328.117 4,383 

Mayor: 
Mayor's salary 95,000 92,495 2,505 
Employee-salary 62,500 48,950 13,550 
PICA and medicare 3i000 2,007 993 
telephone 5,000 4,645 355 
Phone allowance - - -
Vehicle expenses 3,500 2,237 1,263 
Vehicle maintenance 2,000 1,789 211 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

SCHEDULE 1 

Variance • 
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Miscellaneous 5,250 5,097 153 
Retirement 34,000 33.593 407 
LMA convention - - -
Travel 6,500 1,553 4,947 
Health insurance 23,500 21,991 1,509 
Worker's compensation insurance 500 191 309 
Total 240,750 214,548 26,202 

Commissions and Boards: 
Salaries 69,500 61,887 7,613 
PICA and medicare 2,000 1,289 711 
Workei^s compensation Insurance 500 201 299 
Retirement 12,750 12,588 162 
Health insurance 12,250 11,864 386 
Legal 24,500 21,370 3,130 
Supplies 750 597 153 
Miscellaneous 6,500 6,037 .463 

Total 128,750 115,833 12,917 

Council: 
Salary 20,000 19,005 995 
Miscellaneous 2,750 1,535 1,215 
Council's salary 54,000 53,751 249 
PICA and medicare 5,000 4,945 55 
Travel 500 - 500 
LMA convention - - -
Retirement 1,500 1,343 157 
Health insurance 27,500 25,503 1,997 
Worker's compensation Insurance 50 26 24 
Total 111,300 106,108 5,192 

Recreation: 
General recreation expenses 137,000 81,334 55,666 
Office supplies 2,500 2,351 149 
Salaries 180,000 163,-298 16,702 
PICA and medicare 5,000 3,426 1,574 
Health insurance 35,000 13,859 21,141 
Worker's compensation insurance 1,000 714 286 
Computer expense 2,000 1,134 866 
Travel 500 - 500 
Vehicle repairs and maintenance 29,500 3,996 25,504 
Equipment maintenance 11,000 21,740 (10,740) 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

SCHEDULE 1 

Final 
Variance -
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Uhfavdrable) 

Retirement 42,500 34,816 7.684 
Telephone 7,500 . 7.058 442 
Utilities 35.000 29,279 5,721 
Profisssional services Legal 500 22 478 
Capital outlays 1.825,000 1,771,885 53,115 
Ground maintenance and building maintenance 10,987 (10,987) 
Contract services 25,000 24,194 806 
Supplies 8.000 7,139 861 
Drug testing 500 260 240 
Miscellaneous 15,500 12,901 2,599 
Total 2.363,000 2,190,393 172,607 

Inspection: 
Office 3.000 2,594 406 
Salary 105,000 1G3;604 1,396 
FICA and medicare 2.250 1,809 441 
Retirement 30,000 23,041 6,959 
Health insurance 50.000 38,646 11.355 
Wprker^s compensation insurance 500 267 233 
Vehicle fuel 2.500 1,718 782 
Vehicle maintenance 500 119 381 
Uniforms 500 10 490 
Contracts/services - 27 (27) 
Telephone 3.500 3,039 461 
Serriinar 1,500 935 565 
Dues and subscriptions 500 430, 70 
Miscellaneous 6.750 3,780 2.970 
Capital outlay r - r 

Total 206,500 180,018 26,482 

Historical village: 
Salary 50,000 49,155 845 
FICA arid medicare 4,500 3.760 740 
Worker's compensation insurance 750 241 509 
Exhibits 1,000 223 777 
Drug testing - 195 (195) 
Utilities 22,500 21.333 1,167 
Miscellaneous 5.000 2.745 2,255 
Repairs arid maintenance 30,000 29,710 290 
Schools and seminars - - -
Capital outlay 202,000 201,826 174 
Computer 1,225 (1.225) 
Telephone 1,000 782 218 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE 1 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Other Contractual services 1,750 - 1,750 
Office 2,000 1,616 384 
Total 320,500 312,811 7,689 

Total General Government 5,236,300 4,722,448 513,852 

COURT: 
Clerk of Court: 
Court.salarles 173,000 165,509 7,491 
PICA and medicare 4,500 4,172 328 
Wort^er's compensation insurance 250 38 212 
Court retirement 30,500 30,275 225 
Health insurance 32.500 29,873 2,62^ 
Miscellaneous 13,500 13.495 5 
Court expense 2.500 - 2,500 
Total 256,750 243,362 13,388 

Judge: . 
Judge's salary 9.250 8,882 368 
Medicare 250 71 179 
Worker's compeh^tibn insurance 250 4 246 
Retirement 4.000 3;686 314 
Health Insurance 25,000 22,278 2,722 
Total 38,750 34^921 3,829 

Probation: 
Salary 12,500 11,463 1,037 
FlCA and medicare 250 143 107 
Worker's compensation insurance 250 - 250 
Miscellaneous - - -
Health insurance 10,000 8,856 1,144 
Total 23,000 20,462 2,538 

Prosecutor:^ 
Prosecutor salary 45.000 33,450 11,550 
FlCA and medicare 2,750 2,350 400 
Worker's compensation insurance 250 7 243 
Health insurance 29,750 23,056 6,694 
Miscellaneous 7,500 3,782 3,718 
Total 85,250 62,645 22,605 

Marshall: 
Salary 20,000 19,750 250 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

SCHEDULE 1 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

FICA and medicare 1,750 1,510 240 
Worker's compensation insurance 250 54 196 
Miscellaneous - -

Total 22,000 21,314 686 

Total Court 425,750 382,704 43,046 

PUBLIC SAFETY - POLICE: 
Salaries - police officers 2.270,000 2,187,910 82,090 
Office expense 12,500 10.842 1,658 
Chiefs expense 3,000 2,842 158 
Electricity 32,500 31,633 867 
Vehicle expense 124.500 119,587 4,913 
Supplies and maintenance 60,000 59,718 282 
Uniforrns 30,500 30,401 99 
Telephone 51,000 50,951 49 
Clothing allowance 5,000 3,500 1,500 
Phone allowance 11.500 11,240 260 
Reserve deputies 7,500 5,953 1,547 
Miscellaneous 24,750 23,989 761 
New hire test 2,750 756 1,994 
Fica and Medicare 42,500 36,148 6,352 
Retirement 705,000 653,745 51,255 
Health insurance 365,000 313,875 51,125 
Worker's compensation insurance 5.000 4,314 686 
Contracts and services 45,000 43,321 1,679 
Dues and subscriptions 4,000 2,547 1,453 
DAR.E. 12,500 7,814 4,686 
Drug testing 3,750 3,516 234 
Computer expense 65,000 58,865 6,135 
Travel and seminar 46,000 45,681 319 
Professsionalservices legal 50,000 33,022 16,978 
Capital outlays 171,000 157,503 13,497 

Total public safety - police 4,150,250 3,899.673 250.577 

PUBLIC SAFETY - FIRE: 
Salaries 1,660,000 1,650,710 9,290 
Building repairs 26,000 20,278 5,722 
Office expense 10,500 10,372 128 
Electricity 27,500 27,053 447 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

GENERALFUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2015 

SCHEDULE 1 

Final 
Variance -
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Vehicle expense 88,000 76,809 11,191 
Supplies and maintenance 27,000 26,693 307 
Dues and subscriptions 2;000 1,595 405 
Uniforms 17,000 13,200 3,800 
Protective gear 12.500 7,042 5,458 
Telephone 10,000 9,954 46 
Phone allowance 4,000 3,067 933 
Miscellaneous 16,250 15,681 569 
Retirement 375,000 374,721 279 
Health insurance 195,000 189,236 5,764 
Volunteer fireman 15,000 13,760 1,240 
Computer expense 38,000 35,890 2,110 
Contracts and services 10.000 9,695 305 
Professional services legal 10,000 8,947 1,053 
Training 26,000 23,068 1,932 
Physicals 15,500 10,692 4,808 
Drug testing 3,000 2,800 200 
Communication contract 3o:ooo 30,000 -
Pica and medicare 33.000 32,029 971 
Worker's compensation insurance 7,500 7,385 115 
Fire prevention 10,000 8,020 1,980 
Capital outlay 126,500 95,053 31.447 

Total public safety -fire 2.794.250 2.703.750 90.500 

STREETS: 
Salaries 183,750 164,916 18,834 
Office expense 2,500 2; 168 332 
Electricity 164,000 163,299 701 
Vehicle expense 52,250 33,282 18,968 
Supplies and maintenance 206,000 143,053 62,947 
D.CJ. Expense 60,000 56,837 3,163 
Grass cutting contract 20,500 20,050 450 
Telephone 5,500 5,312 188 
Fica^and medicare 5,000 2,519 2,481 
Miscellaneous 7,250 7.042 208 
Uniforms 2,000 1,782 218 
Retirement 32,000 25,568 6,432 
Health insurance 3o;ooo 22,652 7,348 
Worker's compensation insurance 1.750 541 1,209 
Contracts and services 17.500 15,147 2,353 
Travel, schools and seminars - - -
Drug testing 1,000 163 837 

Total streets 791,000 664.331 126,669 
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eiTY OF 2ACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

GENERALFUNP 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2015 

SCHEDULEi 

Sanitation: 
Landfill charges 
Contracts and services 

Total sanitation 

Total General Fund 

Final 
Actual 

Variance -
Favorable 

1,000 822 178 
1.099,000 1.105.052 (6.052) 

$ 1.100.000 $ 1.105,874 $ (5,874) 

$ 14,497.550 $ 13,478,780 $ 1,018,770 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTIVIENT 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

SCHEDULE 2 

Actual 

Water department: 
Salaries $ 318,600 
FICA and medicare 3.943 
Worker's compensation insurance 769 
Compensated absences 1,046 
Electricity 141,645 
Equipment nriaintenance 8,905 
Vehicle itiairitenance 7,705 
Vehicle fuel 19,009 
Supplies 120.850 
Telephone 10,107 
Miscellaneous 15,089 
Retirement 31,051 
Uniforms 3,331 
Health insurance 64,415 
Schools and seminars 1,178 
Water tower maintenance 28,814 
Contracts/services 322,674 

Total water department 1,099,131; 

Gas department: 
Salaries $ 307,670 
FICA and medicare 3,827 
Worker's compensation insurance 743 
Compensated absences 1,035 
Electricity 11,239 
Vehicle fiiel 19.043 
Vehicle equipment maintenance 5,359 
Equipment maintenance 6,603 
Repairs and maintenance 50,859 
Purchase of gas 1,014,692 
Telephone 7,720 
Miscellaneous 7,618 
Retirement 30,770 
Uniforms 2,945 
Health Insurance 63,914 
Schools and seminars 11,795 
Contracts/services 162,596 

Total gas department 1,708,428 

Sewer department: 
Salaries 
PICA arid medicare 
Workei^s compensation insurance 
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CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2015 

SCHEDULED 

Actual 

Compensated absences 858 
Electricity 41,492 
Equipment maintenance 7,299 
Vehicle maintenance 5;348 
Vehicle fuel 18,967 
Supplies 8.331i 
Phone allowance -
Telephone 8,024 
Uniforms 2,576 
Miscellaneous 8,504 
Retirement 22,131 
Health insurance 50,180 
Contracts/services 346,450 
Schools and seminars 976 
Sewer rehab -

Total sewer department 756.732 

Mechanic: 
Salaries $ 44,484 
RCA and medicare 596 
Workeris compensation insurance 1.13 
Compensated absences 183 
Electricity 3,449 
Building maintenance 53 
Vehicle maintenance 44 
Vehicie fuel 489 
Supplies 113 
Telephone 2,887 
Miscellaneous 1,018 
Retirement 4,020 
Health insurance 10,166 
Contracts/services 58 

Total mechanic 67,673 

Warehouse 
Salaries $ 81,489 
PICA and medicare 1,124 
Workeris compensation insurance 254 
Compensated absences 125 
Electricity 3.671 
Building rnaintenance 25,436 
Vehicle maintenance 823 
Vehicle fuel 1,170 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

SCHEDULE 2 

Actual 

Supplies 1,049 
Telephone 3,553 
Miscellaneous 12,315 
Retirement 15,261 
Health Insurance 13,789 
Schools and seminars -

Total warehouse 160,059 

General and administrative: 
Salaries $ 264,507 
FICA and medicare 7,619 
Worker's compensation Insurance 338 
Compensated absences 654 
Insurance 55,220 
Retirement 23,149 
Health insurance 33,008 
Printing 60,728 
Supplies 7,855 
Bank fees 5,840 
Computer expense 45,896 
Professional services 18,675 
Maintenance and services 197,695 
Building rhaintenance 15,020 
Miscellaneous 17,978 
Irispectidn fees -
Collection expense 275 
Drug testing 3;589 

Total general and administrative 758,046 

Depreciation $ 1,346,371 
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COMPONENT UNIT 
CITY COURT 
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eiTY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE 3 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET/STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - COMPONENT UNIT 

CITY COURT 
JUNE 30, 2015 

General Statement of 
Fund Adjustments Net Position 

ASSETS 

Gash and cash equivalents 
Capital assets, net,of accumulated 

177,835 $ - $ 177,835 

aepreciaiion or 

Total Assets 177,835 

luo.o m 

100,814 

lUU.O 

278,649 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS _ 89.532 89^532 

LIABILITIES 286.911 286,911 

DEFERRED INFLOWS . 32.410 32,410 

FUNDBALANCE 

Unassigned 177,835 (177,835) « 

Total Fund Balance 177,835 (177.835) 

NET POSITION 

Net invested in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

- - 55,201 
(6.341) 

Total Net Position $ - $ - $ 48,860 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE 4 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE/STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - COMPONENT UNIT 
CITY COURT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2015 

General 
Fund 

Statement of 
Activities 

EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES 
Judiciary: 
Personal services and benefits $ 
Travel and professional development 
Operating services 
Supplies 
Intergpyemmental (to City of Zachary) 
Depreciation 

114,282 
5,500 

237,570 
100,272 
260,998 

$ (14,013) $ 

(65,445) 

43,418 

100,269 
5,500 

237,570 
34,827 

280,998 
43,418 

Total Expenditures/Expenses. 738,622 (36,040) 702,582 

PROGRAMS REVENUES AND COLLLECTIONS 

Criminal Fees 835,147 _ 835,147 
Total Program Revenues 835,147 _ 835,147 

Net Program Costs 96,525 36,040 132,565 

GENERAL REVENUES 
Investment eamihgs 

EXCESS meficiencv) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 96,525 36,040 132,565 

Transfers to General Fund (60,000) - (60,000) 

FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION: 
Beginning of the Year 
Restate beginning net position 

141,311 33,174 
(198,190) 

174,485 
(198,190) 

141,311 (165;016) (23,705) 

End of the Year $ 177,836 $ (128.976) $ 48,860 
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SCHEDULE 5 

CITY OFZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS 

TO AGENCY HEADS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

AGENCY HEAD: David Amrhein. Mayor 

Purpose Amount 

Salary $ 92.495 
Benefits - insurance 219 
Benefits - retirement 18,268 
Benefits - other 160 
Travel 1,553 
Fuel 1,366 
Vehicle Maintenance 1,789 
Meals and reirhbursements 4.937 
Phone Allowance 1,200 

Purpose Amount 
Salary $ 74,340 
Benefits- Insurance 8,868 
Benefits - retirement 25,307 
Travel/Training 5,110 
Fuel 3,750 
Chief Expense 2,842 
Phone Allowance 1,200 
Clothing 700 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION OF BOARD MEMBERS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

S0HEDULE6 

Gouncli Members fferm): 

Gross Compensation 
during the year 
ended 6/30/15 

John-Coghlan $ 5,656 

Brandon Noel 10,750 

Francis Nezianaya 10,750 

Tommy Womack 10,750 

Daniel D. Wallis, Jr. 5,656 

Benjamin Gavin 5.095 

Laura O'Brien .5,095 

53.752 
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SCHEDULE 7 
CITY OF ZACHARY. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Total 
Program CFDA# Grant Period Expenditures 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Pass through LA DEQ, Capitalization Grants for 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
Loan #221460-01 66.458 NA * 573.890 
Loan # 221450-02 66.458 NA * 1,008,525 

total Envirbriiriental Protection Agency 1,582,415 

United States Department of Housing and Urban pevelppment 
Passed through Louisiana Recovery Unit for 
Community.Development Block Grant 14.228 8/7/12-8/7/15 ^ 1.100.740 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1^100,740 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 2.683,155 

* Major Program 

Note 1. Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 
City of Zachaiy, Louisiana and is presented on the cash basiS; The information in this scheduie 
Is presented in accordance with the requirements of 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule 
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the general purpose financial 
statements. 

Note 2. Clean Wker State Revolving Fund Loans 
This loan is partially reimbursed from.the LA DEQ and partially from the U^S. EPA. Due to the fact 
that this loan Is not 100% federal funds, subrecipients should not report expenditures until the audit 
year that reimbursement is made and confirmed that funds are federal. 
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eiTY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE 

JUNE 30, 2015 

SCHEDULE 8 

Name of Insurer Expiration Date Type of Coverage Coverage Limits 

Princeton Excess T1/1/2015 General liability building $ 3,000,000 

Princeton Excess 11/1/2015 Employee practices liability $ 3,000,000 

Princeton Excess 11/1/2015 Auto liability $ 3.000,000 

Princeton Excess 11/1/2015 Law Enforcement liability $ 3,000,000 

Princeton Excess 11/1/2015 Public official $ 3,000,000 

Southern Insurahce (Republic Group) 11/1/2015 Crime 
Employee theft $ 250,000 
Forgery/Alteration $ 250,000 
Money & Securities; 

Inside premises $ 10,000 
Outside premises $ 5i00d 

Computer Fraud $ 250,000 
Funds transfer fraud $ 250,000 

Louisiana Workers Compensation Corp, 1/1/2015 

Southern Insumace (Republic Group) 11/1/2015 

Workers compensatich 

Auto physical damage & 
scheduled autos 

Statutory Ijmits 

ACV 
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PERFORMANCE AND STATISTICAL DATA 
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CITY OF ZACHARY. LOUISIANA SCHEDULE 9 
SCHEDULE OF UTILITY STATISTICS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

2015 2014 

Gas customer data are as follows: 

Gas sales $ 2.717.566 $ 2.861.465 
Gas purchased $ 1.014.692 $ 1,366,811 
MCF gas sold 233,404 261,196 
Number of customers at year end 4.402 4,343 
MGF gas purchased 262.366 288,197 
MCP gas unaccounted for 28i962 27,001 
Average monthly billing per customer $ 51.45 $ 54.91 

Water customer data are as follows: 

Water sales $ 2,576.200 $ 2.601.356 
Thousands of gallons of water sold 856,731 790;349 
Number of customers at year end- 7,431 7;368 
Average monthly billing per customer $ 28;89 $ 29.42 

Sewef customer data arenas follows: 

Sewer sales: $ 998,515 $ 959.710 
Number of customers at year end 5.060 4.996 
Average monthly billing per customer $ 16:44 $ laoi 
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OTHER REPORTS REQUIRED BY 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
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BAXLEY AND ASSOCIATES. LLC 
p. O. Box 482 Hugh F. Baxley, CPA/CGMA/GVA 
58225 Belleview Drive Margaret A. Pritchard^ CPA/CGMA 
Plaquemine, Louisiana 70764 
Phone (225) 687^630 Fax (225) 687-0365 Staci H. Jpffrion, CPA/CGMA 

SCHEDULE 10 
The Honorable Mayor David Amrhein 
And Merifibers of the Cbuhcll 
City of Zachary, Louisiana 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMEUT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

We have iaudited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the goyemmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented 
component unit (the City Court of Zachary), each major fiind, and the aggregate remaining fupd 
inforrnation of the City of Zachary, Louisiana as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015i and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Zachary, 
Louisiana's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 10, 
2015. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Zachary, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (interrial control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City of Zachary, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City of Zachary, Louisiana's intemal control. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses and 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in 
intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be a rhaterial weakness. (2015-
006) 
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SCHEDULE 10 
(Continued) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS (continued) 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention to those charged 
Vvith governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs be significant deficiencies. (2015-003 and 2015-005) 

Compliance and Other Mattem 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's and the Court's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we perforrhed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts; and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance wth those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit and, accordingly, we do not e:q?ress such an opinion, the results of our tests disclosed 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of firidings and 
questioned costs as items 2015-001,2015-002 and 2015-004. 

City of Zachary, Louisiana's Response to Findings 
City of Zachary, Louisiana's response to the findings identified in our audit is described Jn the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Zachary, Louisiana's response 
was not sut)jected to the auditing procedures, applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on cornpliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative 
Auditor as a public document. 

&S^sociates, LLC 
Zachary, Louisiana 
December 10. 2015 
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BAXLEY AND ASSOCIATES. LLC 
P. 0. Box 482 
58225 Belieview Drive 
Plaquemine, Louisiana 70764 
Phone (225) 687-6630 Fax (225) 687-0365 

Hugh F. Baxley, CPA/CGMA/CVA 
Margaret A. Pritchard, CPA/CGMA 

Staci H. Joffrion, CPA/CGMA 

SCHEDULE 11 

The Honorable Mayor David Amrhein 
And Members of this Council 
City of Zachary, Louisiana 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WIJH OMB CIRCULAR A-I33 

Report on Compiiance for Each Major Federal Prograni 
We have audited City of Zachary, Louisiana's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in thQ OMB Circular A-133 Corripliance Supplementihalcould have a direct and material effect 
on each of City of Zachary, Louisiana's major federal programs for the year ended June 30.2015. City of 
Zachary, Louisiana's majof federal programs are identified in the surrimary of auditor's results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findirigs and questioned costs. 

Managements Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on cprnpliance for each of the City of Zachary, Louisiana's 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133. Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Nori-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
r^uire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City 
of Zachary, Louisiana's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as vi/e 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Zachary, 
Louisiana's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion. City of Zachary, Louisiana complied, in all material respec:ts, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
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SCHEDULE 11 
(Continued) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

0MB CIRCULAR A-133 

Other Matters 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be 
reported in accofdarice with 0MB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as item 2015-007. Our opinion on each major federal program Is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

City of Zachary, Louisiana's response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audjt is described jn 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Zachary, Louisiana's response was 
not subjected to the auditing prociedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on the response. 

Report on Iriternal Control Over Compliance 
Management of City of Zachary. Louisiana is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning 
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Zachary, Louisiana's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program jn order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major program and to test and report on 
internal control over cpnripliance in accordance with 0MB Circular A-133; but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Zachary, Louisiana's intemal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a coritfbl over 
cornpliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in intemal control over compliance js a 
deficiency, or combination of deflcierlcies, in intemal control over corppiiarice. such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program virill not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, of a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program thatis Jess severe than a material 
weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not Identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to. be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance Is solely to describe the scopb of our 
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
0MB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other purpose, 

& S^ssociates, LLC 

Plaquemine. Louisiana 
December 10,2015 
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CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

SCHEDULE 12 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report Issued: unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weaknesses Identified? 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 
• Noncompliance material to financial statements 

noted? 

Federal Awards 

Intemal control over major programs: 

• Material weaknesses Identified? 
• Signiflcant deficiencies identified that are 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

yes 

yes 

yes 

JL 

.yes 

yes 

no 

no 

no 

no 

none reported 

Type of auditor's report issUed on compliance for major programs: unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are. not required 
to be reported in accordance with.section 510(a) 
of Circular A-133? yes no 

Identification of rnajor programs: 

CFDA Number(s): 

66.458 

14:228 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
type A and type B programs: $300.000 

Auditee quaiified as low-risk auditee? yes no 
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SCHEDULE 12 
(Continued) 

CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

B. FINDINGS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT FINDINGS 

2015.001 1099/W-2 REPORTING 

Condition 
During the audit, it was noted that allowances, such as clothing and phone allowances, 
were not reported to the employee on the W-2 or 1099 forms. 

Criteria 
Amounts disbursed to employees that are greiater than $600 should be reported as income 
to the employee If documentation is not available to support the expense. 

Effect 
Miscellaneous tax forms such as 1099-Misc were not properly used. 

Recommendation 
All allowances, such as travel, clothing, etc., should be reported on employee's W-2 or 
1099 forms if there is not proper support for the disbursement. 

Manaaement's Response 
This oversight has been corrected and should not occur in the future. Policies have been 
adopted to ensure that this does riot occur for future audits. 

2015-002 BUDGET 

Condition 
In a Special Revenue Fund, actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by 
more than 100®^. This is a repeat finding. 

Criteria 
The actual expenditures in any of the funds should not exceed the estimated budgeted 
expenditures by more than 10 percent nor should the budgeted revenue exceed the actual 
revenues by more than 10 percent. 

Effect 
The program did riot function as originally intended. 
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SCHEDULE12 
(Continued) 

CITY OF ZAGHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Recommendation 
Continuous efforts should be made by management to monitor revenue and e^qDenditures 
in relation to the budget. Amendments should be made as they become necessary. 

Management's Response 
The expenditures inithe Special Revenue Fund consisted of road projects that were bid 
properly and approved by the Council following the approved procedures. These projects 
were then budgeted in the correct manner as required by the Home Rule Charter and the 
State. In the budgeting process these expenditures were inadvertently omitted from the 
final approved budget: Procedures have been adopted to correct this oversight. 

2015-003 PROPER REVENUE CLASSIFICATION 

Condition 
During the performance of revenue testing, it was found that the amount of actual building 
permits paid to the City of Zachary did not agree to the amount recorded iri the general 
ledger. We also noted mispostihgs in revehue accduhts and amounts recorded in the 
incorrect fund. 

Criteria 
Revenue should be properly classified in the correct account and in the correct fund. 

Effect 
Revenues were not classified in the proper accounts. 

Recommendation 
Monthly and annual financial statements should be reviewed by management for proper 
classification. Reclassification adjustrnents should be made as deemed necessary. 

Management's Response 
This issue has been an ongoing problem as it relates to the financial operating system 
adopted by prior management and how it functions with the permits issued by the 
Inspection Department. Management continues to work with the Company that installed 
the operating system in an effort to correct this problem and to ensure that the problem is 
corrected. 

2015-004 PUBLIC STREET BONDS - NONCOMPLIANCE WITH BOND AGENT 

^ndltion 
It was noted that the City of Zachary was not in compliance with the Public Street bond, 
Series 2013 bond agreement. The sinking fund cash account should have had one half of 
the next interest payrhent and 9/12 of the next principal payment or $485,962. The 
sinking fund showed a shortage of $31,908. 
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Criteria 
At June 30, 2015, of the next semi- annua! Interest payment and 9/12 of the next 
annual principal payment due October 1, 2015 should be accumulated in the sinking fund. 

Effect 
The sinking fund is used to accumulate funds for the principal and interest payments. The, 
sinking fund was below the required amount at June 30, 2015. 

Recommendation 
Monthly transfers should be made to the sinking fund to accumulate funds for the next 
principal and interest payment. 

Management's Response 
This was a tirtilhg problem with depositing the monthly Interest payment. Each monthly 
deposit has been properly deposited prior to the year end. Procedures haye been adopted 
to correctly deposit and record the required monthly deposit of interest. The City has 
adopted the policy where the highest bond payment of all loans is rnaintained in the 
proper accounts. 

2015-005 LONG-TERM OUTSTANDING CHECKS 

Condition 
The General Fund has long-term outstanding checks on bank reconciliations that exceed 
one year. 

Criteria 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Unites States 
requires governmental units to appropriately reverse long-term outstanding checks and 
properly handle them in accordance with State escheat jaws. 

Effect 
The lack of appropriately reversing long-term outstanding checks and properly handling 
them in accordance with State escheat laws causes the bank reconciliations to be 
distorted. 

Recommendation 
We recommend implementing a policy to void checks after a certain period of time, but 
maintaining a report of checks voided in case the payee contacts the City of Zachary to 
claim their funds. We also recommend adhering to the State's escheat la\Are regardirig 
unclaimed property. 

114 



SCHEDULE 12 
(Continued) 

CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Management's Response 
The City currently has a policy to void outstanding checks on a regular basis. These 
checks are sent to unclaimed properties at the State. These checks are also removed 
within six. months of their anniversary date. The City will irhplement a policy to remove 
these checks at an earlier date. 

2015-006 MISPOSTINGS 

Condition 
The Utility Fund has material mispostings related to the accrual of sewer user fees 
payable at year end. 

Criteria 
Intemal controls should be in place to ensure proper posting of transactions at year end. 

Effect 
The mispostings caused incdrtect balances jn accounts receivable, accounts payable, 
sewer user fees payable and expenses. 

Recommendation 
We recommend irnplernenting internal controls to ensure proper posting of sewer user 
fees payable transactions ih accordance with GAAP. 

Management's Response 
The City will implement controls to ensure the proper posting of accounts. 

FEDERAL FINDING 

2015-007 FLOW OF FUNDS - CFDA NUMBER 66,458 - CLEAN WATER STATE 
REVOLVING FUND 

Condition 
Funds were not transferred to appropriate bond accounts in accordance with the bond 
agreement. 

Criteria 
The bond ordinance provides that funds must be transferred from the "Revenue Fund" to 
the "Revenue Bond Debt Service Fund", on or before the 20**^ day of the month of each 
year, at least a sum equat to 1/6^ of the interest and administrative fee falling due on the 
bonds on the next interest payment date and at least a sum equal to 1/12^ of the principal 
falling due on the bonds on any principal payment date that occurs within the next ensuing 
twelve months. 

115 



SCHEDULE 12 
(Continued) 

CITY OF ZACHARY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2015 

The bond ordinance also provides that funds be transferred from the "Revenue Fund" to 
the "Revenue Bond Debt Service Reserve Fund", such amounts as will increase the total 
amount to a sum equal to the Reserve Fund Requirement. 

Effect 
The funds were not transferred to the "Revenue Bond Debt Service Fund" in a timely 
manner in accordance with the bond agreement. 

The total funds in the "Revenue Bond Debt Service Reserve Fund" are not sufficient to 
meet the reserve fund requirement. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the client set up monthly transfers to the "Revenue Bond Debt 
Service Fund" on or before the 20"' :of the month in accordance v\/ith the bond agreement. 

We also recommend that the client transfer funds into the "Revenue Bond Debt Service 
Reserve Fund" to meet the reserve fund requirement. 

ManaaemenVs Response 
This was a timing problem with depositing the monthly interest payment. Each monthly 
deposit had been properly deposited prior to the year end. Procedures have been 
adopted to correctly deposit and record the required monthly deposit of interest. The City 
has adopted the policy where the highest bond payment of all loans is maintained in the 
proper accounts. 
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2014-1 ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES 

Condition 
it was noted on paid invoices that the allocation of amounts to various expense accounts 
were not shown. 

Recommendation 
Distribution of invoice totals to multiple accounts should be recorded on the invoice. 

Current Status 
This finding was corrected in the current year. 

2014-2 BUDGET 

Condition 
In a Special Revenue Fund, budgeted revenues exceeded the actual revenues by more 
than 24% and actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by more than 65%. 
This is a repeat finding. 

Recommendation 
Continuous efforts should be made by management to monitor revenue and expenditures 
in relation to the^ budget. Amendments should be made as they become necessary. 

Current Status 
The condition stiil exists in the current year. 

2014-3 PROPER CLASSIFICATION 

Condition 
During the performance of revenue testing, rt was found that the amount of actual buildihg 
permits paid to the City of Zachary did not agree to the amount recorded in the general 
ledjger We also noted mispostings in revenue accounts and amounts recorded In the 
incorrect fund; 

Recommendation 
Monthly and annual financial statements should be reviewed by management for proper 
classification. Reclassification adjustments should be made as deemed necessary. 

Current Status 
This condition still exists in the current year. 
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2014-4 PROPER PERIOD RECORDING 

Condition 
Two checks totaling $641,411 froni the bond construction bank account dated In July 
2014 were recorded In June 2014. Due to the nature of this loan, only the proceeds 
received by City of Zachary at June 30, 2014 are reported on the SEFA. These two 
disbursements were not reimbursed prior to June 30, 2014, and are not included on the 
SEFA. However, they are recorded in Bonds Payable and Accounts Receivable - Other 
at June 30, 2014. 

Recommendation 
Management should review bahk reconciliations an detailed general ledger reports to 
ensure that checks are recorded in the proper period. 

Current Status 
This finding was corrected |n the current year. 

FEDERAL PROGRAM FINDINGS 

2014-5 PROPER PERIOD RECORDING 

Condition 
Two checks totaling $641,411 from the bond construction bank account dated in July 
2014 were recorded in June 2014. Due to the nature of this loan, only the proceeds 
received by City of Zachary at June 30, 2014 are reported on the SEFA. These two 
disbursements were not reimbursed prior to June 30, 2014, and are not included on the 
SEFA. However, they are recorded in Bonds Payable and Accounts Receivable - Other 
at June 30, 2014. 

Recommendation 
Management should review bank reconciliations an detailed general ledger reports to 
ensure that checks are recorded In the proper period. 

Current Status 
This finding was corrected in the current year. 
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